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Fellow Stockholders,

Before turning to the Company’s performance in 2004, | would like to offer a few words about
Hypercom’s direction. We envision 2005 as the gateway to a transformed and highly competitive
Company. On an interim basis, while a search is being conducted to find the next Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, I will lead this transformation as Chairman of the Board, and interim Chief Executive
Officer and President. This follows the retirement of Chris Alexander as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and President at the end of March 2005. | am joined by Grant Lyon as interim Chief Financial Officer,
following the departure from the Company of John Smolak, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
and Administrative Officer, in March 2005. Grant will remain interim Chief Financial Office until we
recruit a new full-time Chief Financial Officer to lead the Company’s efforts in account/pug,jmanoal
control and reporting. We, together with the management team globally, will \ea/)/éjg Co?“h‘ganﬁy
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2004 was clearly an uneven year for the Company. We had many successes in the marl:@ﬁ,t‘r{at have
created a strong foundation for future growth. We introduced exciting new product lines to a number of
markets around the world with excellent customer acceptance. In the fourth quarter, we began to grow
our revenues and our market share in certain markets, after a number of years of competitive challenges.

Our balance sheet management has led to the Company having cash and short-term investments of over
$93 million at the end of 2004. The metrics of working capital, day's sales outstanding, inventory turns
and debt to equity, all continued to improve, resulting in a strengthened balance sheet and continued
financial stability.
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At the same time, in each quarter of 2004, there were disappointments that were unacceptable to us,

and undoubtedly to you. These included supply chain issues, an $11.3 million charge related to costs
previously deferred under our contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry, and negative pre-announcements
related to earnings. The most recent of these disappointments was the previously announced restatement
of the financial results of the first three quarters of fiscal year 2004; and as of December 31, 2004, the
reporting of material weaknesses in our internal controls related to financial reporting.

Key financial measures for 2004 include:

+ Revenues were $255.2 million, an increase of 10% over 2003.

« Gross margin was $92.1 million, or 36.1% of revenue, down from $96.0 million
or 41.5% of revenue in fiscal year 2003.

+ Operating expenses were $93.5 million, an increase of 12.7% over 2003.

+ The loss before discontinued operations for the year was $8.7 million,
or -$0.17 per share, versus a profit of $4.0 million or $0.08 per share in 2003.

These are the facts regarding the Company’s 2004 results. This is not a performance in which we take pride.

The New Optimum Product Family

In late 2004, we released the first member of the new, 32-bit technology-based, Optimum™ product
family, the Optimum L4100. The response to this multi-application signature capture device for multi-
lane retailers has been excellent. The Optimum L4100 has opened the door for Hypercom to access an
important vertical market in which we had previously been marginally successful. We gained new
market share with this product, particularly in the United States. We saw year-over-year revenue growth
of 25.7% in the fourth quarter of 2004, in part as a result of the introduction of this product.

We also continued to reinforce and solidify our dominant position in the mainstream small retailer
market with highly reliable product offerings. We announced the high-speed, high-performance, multi-
application Optimum T2100 and T4100 for smaller retailers.

Optimum

rformance and Security.




Both of these new products were delayed, affecting our ability to deliver our commitments to our
customers, and for them to deliver to the market. We will, in the future, be placing significantly higher
emphasis on our product development and release processes to ensure timely releases of new products.
Meeting our commitments to customers with products, software applications, training and support is a
mandatory requirement to achieve our vision for your Company.

Our presence in Europe continued to strengthen, attributable to our expertise on EMV platforms and the
introduction and acceptance of the T2100 as our 32-bit Optimum product offering for the international
markets. This product launch confirmed we are on the right track to earn the rewards of our Optimum
development efforts, worldwide.

Financial and Accounting Controls

We spent significant time, energy and resources As a result, the Company has made remediation
on the requirements of Sarbanes-Oxley of these internal control deficiencies its number
compliance. Our review uncovered a significant one priority. Meeting commitments to our
number of internal control deficiencies globally, stockholders for accurate reporting and financial
some of which were small, others of material controls is absolutely mandatory. There is no
conseqguence. Our financial team remediated “silver bullet” for eliminating these deficiencies;
many of these deficiencies prior to year-end. it is a direct function of hard work and the
However, as of the end of 2004, a significant commitment of our team. We will make
number of internal control deficiencies still significant progress through the year, and will
existed. Management concluded that although continue to accurately report our results.

the reporting for 2004 was accurate, the
continuing internal contro! deficiencies meant
that we could not ensure that there would not
be deficiencies in the financial reporting in the
future, if we did not address them now.




Our Vision for Transformation

We are developing a clear vision for the Company:

+ We will become the global leader in electronic
transaction management. We believe that we are
in a market that is growing from a global
perspective. We believe that the electronic
transactions market extends beyond our
traditional focus of payment systems. We believe
that our products and services, our relationships
with our customers, our global reach and our
people give us the tools with which to both
recapture and grow our market share at the
expense of our competitors.

+ We will deliver a broad range of reliable, secure,
and value-priced hardware, applications, transports
and value-added services to customers who are
locking to build, deliver or use high-speed, high-
volume, high-function information and data
transfer capabilities. Our Optimum product set,
when fully deployed, will represent the cornerstone
of the next generation of our offerings.

* We will maintain a lead in the capabilities we
offer our customers by listening carefully to their
requirements and delivering products that timely
meet those requirements. We will do this through
increasingly fiexible manufacturing environments
that can accommodate shorter product life cycles
and our customers’ rapidly changing needs.

+ Our business will be conducted with the highest
levels of integrity, including our financial reporting
systems, our interactions with customers and
suppliers, and in the actions of the many pecple
who work for our Company, directly and
indirectly, around the world.

* We will re-energize, lead, and motivate a world-
class team of Hypercom people to make this
vision a reality.

Beyond this vision, we have a number of
specific goals for this period of transformation:

* Revenue growth was insufficient to grow market
share in 2004 based on our best assessment of
industry growth. Our goal is to grow revenue each
year, such that we gain market share globally.

+ Our gross margin of 36.1% as reported for 2004
is unacceptable to the Company. The write-off of
costs previously deferred under our contract with
the Brazilian Health Ministry, however, reduced
gross margin by $11.3 million. Normalized, i.e.,
without the necessity for this reserve, consolidated
gross margin for products and services sold in
2004 was $103.4 million or 40.5%.

+ Our goal is to leverage our operating expenses
such that incremental revenues will result in a
significant improvement in operating margin
performance over time. The increase of 12.7%
in operating expenses in 2004 is therefore
unacceptable to us going forward. While
expenses relating to Sarbanes-Oxley and other
unusual costs affected the increase in operating
expenses, more control and alignment of the
total operating expense base is required.

* The Brazilian Health Ministry contract, after
recoveries, reduced net income before
discontinued operations by $11.3 million or
$0.22 per share. However, even after adjusting
for this one-time charge, earnings per share
would have been $0.05. This level of net
income is not acceptable, nor is it a reasonable
basis for 2005 year-over-year comparisons.
Our goal is to significantly increase the
Company’s earnings per share to a base level
where future year growth comparisons are
meaningful. Under all circumstances, the
2004 net {oss is unacceptable to us.




Our People

Our people are our strength, and this is not the usual “tip of the hat” to the employees. We have a
seasoned and very strong team dedicated to putting Hypercom at the cutting edge of product
engineering with products that are market-ready. We look to our entire global team during this period of
transformation to take the Company to the next level, to accelerate our efforts in the marketplace and to
achieve our mission of becoming the clear global leader in electronic transaction management.

Our Culture

At Hypercom we are now focused on three core elements of culture, based on the following tenets:
People are our strength. Partnerships are the key to competitive success in the marketplace. Customers
are our passion. We have begun the process of re-focusing on these tenets, and that focus has started
to prepare us for our coming battles for market share growth leading to improved financial
performance. Our culture for the future will be directly tied to a winning employee attitude toward
financial success, a commitment to global presence and partnerships, and a re-energized customer
focus. Qur core elements of culture are:

+ A Market-Focused Company: Our efforts at transforming Hypercom from an engineering and
technology company into a market-focused and driven engineering and technology company are
producing successful results and recognition by others in the industry. We believe that we are
positioned favorably, based on our experience and knowledge of transaction networking and
terminal technology, together with our commitment to competing more aggressively in the
marketplace, to capture more market share around the worlid.

* A Global Company: The world is our market, not just a single country or a few product segments.
We have a global network of sales, support and development centers. We are one of the largest
worldwide providers of electronic payment system solutions for point-of-sale. We believe that our
experience and global presence enables us to market, distribute and support our products more
effectively, and in more markets, than most of our competitors. We will continue to seek
opportunities to expand global market share by leveraging our product portfolio and distribution
channels in emerging high-growth regions in Europe, Asia/Pacific and Latin America. Additionally,
the Company expects significant growth in established geographies through further penetration of
the multi-lane and quick-service restaurant markets and through the re-terminalization of the
installed base of merchants with updated technologies via the Optimum family.

* A Winning Company: Success breeds success. We have had some ups and downs over the past
several years. The Company’s management and employees will collectively pull together to produce
credible financial success so that all of the other elements of success at the Company can come to
the forefront. To win, we must understand the market and the competition, we must have a clear
vision on how to succeed, and we must compete aggressively. It must be done while producing
positive financial results for our stockholders. This is our commitment.

Complete Payment Solutions
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The Road Ahead

Throughout 2005, we will continue our transformation and our commitment to business-driven
innovation, competition and financial performance. We intend to build on the success of our new
Optimum products, develop product extensions around these highly successful products, emphasize
manufacturing cost reductions, focus on penetrating new and emerging markets, and actively and
aggressively compete against the other key players in our industry segment.

Sincerely,

William Keiper
Chairman of the Board, and Interim Chief Executive Officer & President
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PART 1

I FEE

Unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Hypercom,” “the Company,” “we,” “our,” and “our business”
refer to Hypercom Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Item 1. Business

General

Hypercom Corporation is the third largest global provider of complete electronic payment solutions and
value-added services at the point-of-transaction. Our vision is to be the world’s most recognized and trusted
brand for electronic transaction management through a wealth of applications, technology and value-added
services. Our customers are large domestic and international financial institutions, electronic payment
processors, large retailers, independent sales organizations (ISOs) and distributors. Customers around the
globe select Hypercom because of our proven leadership and expertise in the global electronic payments
industry, commitment to our customers’ success, support of past and future technologies and backing of the
quality and reliability of our products. We deliver convenience and value to merchants, as well as to other
businesses that require reliable, secure, high-speed and high-volume information/data transfers.

We believe our strength lies in our people and our commitment of delivering value to our customers. We
will continue to enhance our product and service portfolio, and make long-term investments in technology,
manufacturing and the evolving needs of current and future customers. We are well-positioned to address
higher industry standards, meet the increased demands of the marketplace and capitalize on key geographic
and vertical segment opportunities in order to achieve our goal of increasing our market share and profitability.

Business History

Hypercom designs, manufactures and sells point-of-sale (POS) and point-of-transaction
(POT) terminals, peripheral devices, transaction networking devices, transaction management systems,
application software and information delivery services. Additionally, we provide directly, or through qualified
contractors, support and related services that complement and enhance our hardware and software products.

We are the successor to an Australian company founded in 1978. Our operations were primarily focused
on Asian markets until 1987 when the company expanded its operations into the United States as a result of
being awarded contracts to supply advanced technology POS terminals and related network systems to
American Express. Commencing in the early 1990s, we expanded our operations into Latin America and
Europe to take advantage of the increasing use of credit and debit cards in those markets.

Hypercom reincorporated in 1996 under the laws of Delaware and shortly thereafter, through a series of
corporate restructurings, became a U.S. holding company for the Australian corporation and its subsidiaries.
In 1997, we completed an initial public offering of our common stock, which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol, “HYC.”

With worldwide headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, we market our products in more than 100 countries
through a global network of sales, service and development offices. Our main regional headquarters are located
in Australia, Brazil, China, Sweden and the United Kingdom.

Electronic Payment Industry

Over the past several decades, consumers worldwide have increasingly utilized card-based payment
methods, such as credit, debit and gift cards, to replace checks and cash. Card-based payment requires the use
of a POS terminal capable of reading a cardholder’s account information from the card’s magnetic stripe or
chip and combining this information with the amount of the sale entered via the terminal keypad. The
terminal electronically captures and securely transmits this transaction information over a communications
network to an authorized computer data center and then displays the returned authorization or verification
response.



The structure of the electronic payments industry is best described by examining the entities involved and
their relationship to one another. Card associations, such as Visa and MasterCard, license their “brand” to
card issuers, such as banks, and also define the standards that terminals must meet to be certified for use in
their respective networks. Bank acquirers and their agents sign up merchants, install POS terminal equipment,
capture the transaction data, and route it through the credit or debit card network to obtain transaction
approval. Payment processors authorize the customers’ transactions, providing a tally of these transactions to
merchants and transfer funds to merchants to cover card purchases. Issuers provide consumers with the
payment card and settle their accounts. Equipment manufacturers make the terminal hardware and software
and, in the case of Hypercom, also the network equipment upon which high-performance and secure payment
processing networks rely. Transaction transport providers, such as HBNet (our transaction delivery business),
facilitate the delivery of the transaction data and provide the physical network framework between merchants
and payment processors. This structure may vary in each geographic region or country where multiple
functions may be performed by a single entity such as a bank.

Payment systems require an extremely high level of reliability and security, as even an apparently small
system failure or a security breach can have extremely serious consequences. The electronic payment industry
operates in a sophisticated environment of dedicated systems, applications, specialized hardware products and
access networks. It will continue to evolve as the demands of the market and the rules that govern it change
rapidly.

Market Size and Constraints

According to Frost & Sullivan (World EFT Terminal Markets — Market Size Analysis; 2004),
estimated revenues of the POS terminal industry in 2003 were $2.1 billion, with shipments totaling 7 million
units. Frost & Sullivan also reports that the POS terminal market is highly concentrated with the top four
POS terminal manufacturers accounting for approximately 70% of POS terminals shipped in 2003. The
remaining 30% of terminals shipped is spread among 40 manufacturers who compete on either a regional or
local country basis, within specific market segments or with a limited range of products and services. We
believe the following market constraints are barriers to entry and may restrict future growth for manufacturers
in our industry:

e Price. As POS terminals become commoditized over time, pricing becomes a more significant
consideration in our customers’ purchase decisions. Consequently, terminal manufacturers have been
increasingly challenged to deliver products and services that target critical specifications at competitive
price points.

+ Scale. The design, manufacture and distribution of POS terminals on a global basis requires a
significant infrastructure. As a result, smaller or regional manufacturers may have limited capacity and
therefore limited appeal to global customers who are marketing terminals on a broader basis and at
higher volumes.

» Certification Standards and Costs. All payment solutions must be certified with card associations,
financial institutions and payment processors. A certification can be a lengthy and expensive
undertaking. Many terminal manufacturers in the industry lack the relationships, knowledge and
experience necessary to obtain these certifications quickly and cost-effectively, thereby delaying their
time to market and overall competitiveness.

» Commitment to Future Technologies. New standards, regulations and certifications in the electronic
payment industry require terminal manufacturers to continually develop new technologies that enhance
the performance and profitability of both customers and end-users. This commitment requires
significant investment in research and development.

» Global Presence. Large customers prefer terminal manufacturers that have a global presence and are
able to provide services and support in many geographic regions. Smaller or regional manufacturers,
while they may be competitive in their niche, are not able to provide services and support on a global
scale.




Market Growth Drivers

The following are a number of factors that have contributed to recent growth in our industry and will
continue to do so in the near future:

New Security Standards.  The two major security initiatives in the industry are EMV and PCI. EMV
is a set of global specifications established by Europay, MasterCard International and Visa Interna-
tional (EMVCo) for cards, terminals, and applications to enable global smart card transactions and
reduce fraud. Deadlines for conversion from magnetic stripe to chip card are set for each geographic
region. The move to comply with EMV specifications is expected to significantly promote terminal
sales growth especially in regions such as Europe, Asia/Pacific and Latin America. Visa International
and MasterCard International recently agreed to a common methodology for how PIN entry devices
(PEDs) are tested and approved. These important initiatives, called PCI (Payment Card Industry)
standards, supersede Visa International and Mastercard International’s respective standards for PED
security. PCI standards will drive an upgrade of the entire installed base of PEDs over time.

Internet Protocol (IP). 1P connectivity provides faster transmission of transaction data at a lower
cost, enabling more advanced payment and other value-added applications at the point of sale. Major
telecommunications carriers have expanded their communications networks and lowered fees to allow
more merchants to utilize TP networks cost effectively. The faster processing and lower costs associated
with TP connectivity have opened new markets for electronic payment systems, many of which have
previously been primarily cash-only industries such as quick service restaurants (QSRs).

Contactless. Contactless technology, in particular Radio Frequency Identification (RFID), creates a
convenient way to pay for goods and services. [t is an emerging technology and is rapidly gaining
acceptance. It can deliver extremely fast transaction times, reduce waiting times and eliminate the
need for paper receipts. It is especially suitable for access control and use in employee cafeterias,
QSRs, gas stations and public transit systems.

Wireless. Wireless electronic payment solutions are being developed to increase transaction process-
ing speeds and mobility for electronic transactions. Wireless terminals provide consumers with
additional security by allowing them to maintain control of their payment card at all times.
Additionally, the cost per transaction using wireless terminals may be lower than that of wired
terminals in regions burdened with high telecommunications costs such as Europe and Asia/Pacific. It
also enables communications in those regions lacking an established landline telecommunications
infrastructure.

Debit.  Debit is the dominant payment instrument in most international markets and is rapidly
growing in the U.S. Debit cards allow banks to reach a wider population of potential cardholders,
thereby increasing the number of transactions. The cost of a debit transaction is generally lower than
that of a credit transaction. As a consequence, electronic payment is now an affordable and convenient
option in markets lacking a significant credit base and for small ticket transactions and venues.

Emerging Regions and Market Segments. Increases in the cardholder base and the build out of
payment system infrastructure in China, India, Russia and other developing countries will result in
terminal sales growth over the next several years. In the U.S. and Europe, consumer segments such as
QSRs and unattended/self service verticals have started using POS terminal devices. These markets
represent a significant opportunity for terminal manufacturers since they have a low level of terminal
penetration.

Multiple Application. In addition to payment, technology enhanced POS and POT terminals have
the capability to perform concurrent applications like loyalty, stored value, age identification, benefits
authorization and transfer. The secure integration of these applications with payment processing
provides a comprehensive solution that allows institutions a means of competitive differentiation.

Non-Traditional Applications. The government sector, particularly in the U.S., is a significant
opportunity for terminal manufacturers. Initiatives such as paper check conversion, EBT (Electronic
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Benefit Transfer) programs, and the U.S. military’s payment programs are all potential drivers of
POS/POT terminal deployment. Additionally, POS terminals and transaction transport technology are
being utilized in the healthcare sector to provide fast and secure transmission of eligibility, authoriza-
tion and payment.

Competition

The electronic payments industry is intensely competitive and subject to rapid technological change,
evolving customer requirements, and changing business models. The rapid pace of technological change
creates new opportunities for existing competitors and start-ups and can quickly render existing technologies
less valuable. Customer requirements and preferences continually change as other technologies emerge or
become less expensive, and as concerns such as security and privacy rise to new levels.

We face competition from well-established companies and entities with differing approaches to the
market. Our main direct global competitors are Ingenico, a publicly-held, French company, VeriFone, Inc., a
privately-held, U.S. company, and Lipman, a publicly-held, Israeli company. In any particular market, we
may also find ourselves in competition with local or regional manufacturers and distributors.

In our multi-lane segment, our indirect éompetitors include companies such as Symbot Technologies and
Hand Held Products, Inc.

Competitive Strategy

Our strategy is to distinguish ourselves by combining operational excellence, technology and customer
relationships into a comprehensive portfolio of products and services that drives revenues and reduces our
customers’ total cost of ownership. Key elements of our competitive strategy include:

» Further Penetrate Existing Market Segments — continue to promote and market the functionality of
our product portfolio to address the specific needs of key vertical markets. We currently provide system
solutions that are customized for the global needs of our multi-lane and independent retail customers.
We intend to continue to focus on these attractive vertical markets, as well as increase our penetration
of new markets such as QSRs, ATMs, unattended kiosks and medical benefits authorization and
transfer.

» Capitalize on Demand for Wireless Transactions — accommodate the growing demand for reliable,
secure and cost-efficient wireless devices. Potential users of this technology include mobile merchants
such as taxi and delivery drivers, off-site services and merchants in the hospitality industry. These
merchants are looking for a POS terminal that utilizes the convenience of wireless communication
technologies and the security of being able to receive real-time authorizations with the reliability of a
wired terminal.

o Capitalize on Terminalization Requirements of Emerging Geographic Regions — continue to seek
opportunities to expand global market share by leveraging our product portfolio and distribution
channels in emerging, high-growth regions in Europe, Asia/Pacific and Latin America. In addition to
expanding into new geographic markets, we will benefit from a replacement cycle that is ongoing in
various geographic regions for a variety of reasons including, technology (signature capture, RFID,
multi-application); new security standards (EMV); and newer communications technologies (wireless,
IP connectivity).

« Focus on Market-Driven Product Development — continue to concentrate our R&D resources on new
products and services that address the current and near future requirements of our customers and end-
users. We plan to focus our development efforts in the following areas: enhanced security at both the
terminal and transaction level; advanced communications technologies such as IP-enabled and wireless
terminals; multiple-application; contactless technologies such as RFID; and products for new verticals
such as unattended kiosks and ATMs. We will continue to work with our customers to ensure our
products meet their needs and technical requirements and are brought to market in a timely and cost-
effective manner.




Improve Total Cost Structure — continue to reduce our cost of business to enhance our profitability
and competitiveness. We intend to further reduce our product costs through design improvements and
shifting certain high-volume production to lower-cost manufacturing regions, such as China. We will
confinue to maintain a market-centric approach to our research and product development activities,
thus ensuring that our efforts are directed at commercially feasible opportunities. As our current
infrastructure is suitable to our current and foreseeable business requirements, our incremental
investment requirements should be nominal and our existing cost structure leverageable at higher
volumes. We continue to evaluate our direct sales channel infrastructure and will pursue alternate
channels, such as distributors, in regions where it makes economic sense to do so. We also intend to
continue to refine our foreign exchange hedging program and global tax strategy.

Continue to Pursue Recurring Revenue Opportunities — identify and pursue opportunities that are
complementary to our existing product and service offerings and provide recurring revenue. HBNet,
our new transaction delivery business, is expected to generate long-term contracts that will result in
recurring revenue. We also are expanding our service business in Brazil that provides repair,
deployment, help-desk and other post-sale services. We will continue to pursue similar opportunities
that will help us transition from our primary business of terminal manufacturing to a more dynamic
business model that includes both one-time and recurring revenue streams.

Product Lines and Services

Hypercom products and services include POS and POT terminals, peripheral devices, application
software, transaction networking devices, transaction management systems, and information delivery services,
as well as providing related regional support services.

Terminals and Peripherals

Our product families include:

Optimum™ — includes the 1.4100, a compact, high-performance signature capture and PIN entry card
payment terminal specifically designed for multilane retailers; the T4100, a powerful 32-bit desktop
terminal for true multi-application; the T2100, a handover desktop terminal specifically designed to
perform fast EMV transactions; the M2100, a mobile terminal that leverages the latest wireless
communication technologies; and the P2100, a EMV-compliant PIN pad for integrated retail
environments. Both the L4100 and T4100 are RFID-ready.

ICE™ — includes the ICE 5500M and the ICE 6000P/us for the multi-lane retail environment; ICE
5500P{us and 5700Plus, countertop terminals.

T7 — the T7P and the T7Plus, the best combination of features and functions for merchants who need
a reliable, low-cost POS device.

Peripherals — includes printers, PIN pads, check readers, receipt capture devices, identity verification
devices and external modems. Our family of durable, high-security PIN pads and card acceptance
devices are designed for either indoor or outdoor use. The products include the S9 and S9Plus, secure
PIN pads built for indoor use, and the S1200 and S1300, the outdoor components to our QSR drive-
thru solution.

Transaction Networking Devices, Transaction Management Systems and Application Software

Products that interface with our POS technology include network access controllers and gateway devices
specifically designed to support the unique requirements of high volume/high value transaction-based
networks. Products in this family include the MegaNAC® 180 and 240 and the IN-zact™ family of Ethernet/
Internet gateway devices. Every network application software program we produce includes a management
and control module that interacts with our HypercomView® management system to monitor system
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operations. We also offer a complete portfolio of software applications for terminal operations, network device
operations, systems development and management.

Services

We are committed to providing a high level of service and support to our customers either directly, or
through our distributors or other third-party providers. We offer a wide range of support services that
contribute to the increased profitability of our customers and meet their individual needs.

Our separate service companies include NetSet Brazil, NetSet Chile, Hypercom de Mexico and HBNet.
Our service companies’ revenues accounted for approximately 10.6% of our consolidated revenues in 2004.

We also have a terminal maintenance program, including merchant assistance, associated with our lease
operation in the United Kingdom, to provide warranty/non-warranty repairs in support of our hardware
terminal sales as well as software development and consulting services at our major locations around the world.
Revenues associated with these activities did not exceed 10% of our consolidated revenues for any years
included in our consolidated results of operations.

NetSet Brazil, NetSet Chile, and Hypercom de Mexico

NetSet Braril, NetSet Chile, and Hypercom de Mexico are each full service organizations that operate as
stand alone service companies under service contracts with major banks and card associations. The recurring
services they provide principally include deployments, repairs, help-desk, on-site technician visits and the
provision of supplies. Additionally, these organizations perform one-off special projects such as software
uploads or terminal enhancement programs requested by our customers. Terms of our service arrangements
are set forth in separate service contracts ranging from one to three years, although termination is allowed with
appropriate advanced notification. Revenues under these contracts are recognized as we perform the service.

Netset Brazil is our largest service organization, representing 74% of our service revenues, covering all of
Brazil with multiple service centers and service technicians located throughout the country. We continually
seek to expand its service coverage by increasing the deployed population of terminals and product offerings
and servicing terminals manufactured by competitors which are owned by our NetSet customers. Hypercom
de Mexico, representing 16% of our service revenues, covers all of Mexico and operates under the same
business model as NetSet Brazil. NetSet Chile, representing 6% of our service revenues, covers all of Chile,
and its customers include two processors and a bank in Chile.

HBNet

HBNet, our transaction delivery business, is a provider of value-added data communication services for
transaction-based applications. The service provides such functionality as protocol conversion, intelligent
transaction routing and web-based, transaction-level reporting. In contrast to competing services, HBNet is
built on Hypercom’s latest-generation hardware platform. Additionally, telecommunications technology has
changed dramatically over the past years. HBNet's recent inception allows it to more easily support emerging
POS technologies.

HBNet has assembled a highly-efficient network infrastructure, which allows it to keep costs down to
offer the best pricing in the market. While keeping costs down, HBNet has designed an elegant, no-single-
point-of-failure network to ensure its customers the highest in service reliability and security. Redundancy and
failover are incorporated along every step of the processing stream.

HBNet recognizes that no two customers are alike, so each installation is custom-designed and built to
the client’s exact specifications. Outsourcing to HBNet allows acquirers to have all the benefits of an in-house
network without the associated costs or capital expenditure or staff commitment, thereby permitting them to
focus on the acquisition and retention of valuable merchant accounts and the design and development of new
applications or functionality.




HBNet typifies Hypercom’s transition to a new business model. In HBNet, we are beginning to move
from a focus on one-time hardware sales to a recurring-revenue and service provider orientation. HBNet not
only provides a new revenue source, it also leverages core competencies in the areas of network hardware
manufacturing, network design and support, and the market reach of our sales organization.

As technologies such as IP and wireless begin to take hold at the point-of-sale, the market will see a
growing shift toward more sophisticated terminal applications. HBNet will provide a support infrastructure for
our multi-application operating systems to quickly and cost-effectively deliver transactions to diverse
processing entities. Early adopters of the HBNet solution include organizations involved in biometrics, health
care, prepaid, micropayments, gift and loyalty. Market penetration of these complex applications is expected
to dramatically increase in coming years as the consumer interaction can be transacted in several seconds with
broadband connectivity, as compared to several minutes over dial-up connection. We believe, HBNet will
continue to support our growth beyond the payments industry into information delivery segments.

HBNet is a slow-growth opportunity given the structure of the marketplace and the long term nature of
the contracts for which we compete. Presently, HBNet does not account for a significant portion of our
consolidated revenue or our total service revenue.

Marketing

Our general marketing strategy, which coordinates key market messaging across regions, is directed from
our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters; however, each region develops programs to meet the needs of its local
markets. Components of our marketing program include product marketing, trade shows, news releases,
editorial interviews, industry analyst briefings, speaking platforms and engagements, training and technology
seminars, sales collateral and white papers, print advertising, articles and newsletters.

Sales and Distribution

Our major sales and marketing regions include North America, Latin America, EMEA (Europe, Middle
East and Africa), Asia/Pacific (which includes Australia). In 2004, approximately 68% of our revenue came
from international sources. Our global customers include:

» Payment Processors

+ Distributors/Resellers

« Large Retailers

« Financial Institutions

+ Independent Sales Organizations (ISOs)

Sales to specific customers in our industry can account for a significant portion of our revenue. For
example, First Data Corporation and its subsidiaries, in the aggregate, accounted for approximately 10.2% of
2004 revenue. This same customer accounted for approximately 9.3% of revenue in 2003. In 2004, our top two
customers accounted for 17.3% of our revenue and our top five customers accounted for 27% of our revenue.

We have leveraged our extensive and long-standing relationships in the industry to complement our direct
sales efforts. We distribute and sell our products internationally through financial institutions and distributors.
Domestically, we distribute and sell our products through our direct sales force that targets financial
institutions, payment processors, large retailers, ISOs, distributors and resellers.

Some of our key sales attributes are:

» Global Presence. We are one of the largest worldwide providers of electronic payment system
solutions for use at the point of sale. We have developed a global network of sales, support and
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development centers. We believe that our experience and global presence enable us to market,
distribute and service our products more effectively, and in more markets than most of our competitors.

» Comprehensive Product Portfolio. We offer a full range of products that fulfill the spectrum of
market needs. Our product portfolio ranges from the low-cost, established and reliable T7 family of
terminals to the recently released, high-performance 32-bit Optimum family. Our terminals are further
complemented by peripherals that enhance their capabilities.

» Low Total Cost of Ownership. The total cost of ownership includes the following costs: deployment,
implementation, application certification, maintenance and product obsolescence. We continue to
support and focus on providing our customers with a clear migration strategy for new technologies
versus a buy today, replace tomorrow strategy.

« Technology Adoption. Our technological advances have continued to support industry adoption of
value-added features, such as electronic receipt capture, smart cards, electronic signature capture,
positive identification and multi-application. Our engineering has consistently focused on quality and
performance, including speed of the transaction, number of and type of completed transactions, the
speed of application download and the user interface. Our modular design allows our customers to only
select the features that meet their specific needs, thereby minimizing their costs and increasing their
flexibility. '

Research and Development

Our market-focused research and product development activities concentrate on developing new
products, technologies and applications for our products as well as enhancements to existing technologies and
applications. We design and develop all of our own products and incorporate where appropriate, technologies
from third parties and those available in the public domain. Internal development allows us to maintain closer
technical control over our products. Development projects are evaluated through a management review
process that includes input from our sales, marketing, manufacturing and engineering teams. Our product
development process generally involves the following:

« Identification of the applicable market and development parameters
+ Development of engineering specifications, including target costs

« Design and engineering

« Testing

¢ Quality assurance

+ Pilot production

Through this process, we are able to assess the needs of individual customers and markets to develop
products and platforms that address those needs globally. Bringing quality products to market in a timely
manner is the primary objective of all our product development initiatives.

Our research and development activities are coordinated through our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters. To
serve the needs of customers around the world, we “localize” many of our products to reflect local languages
and conventions. Localizing a product may require modifying the user interface, altering dialog boxes and
translating text. Each of our regional geographic sales and marketing units has in-region development
resources that can provide customization and adapt products to meet the needs of customers in local markets.
Development staffs are located in Australia, Brazil, China, Hong Kong, Latvia, Russia, Singapore, Sweden
and the United Kingdom.

Our research and development expenses were $27.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 and
$24.2 million, and $24.7 million for the years ending December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We plan to
continue significant investment on a broad range of product development projects for which the commercial
opportunity is apparent.




Manufacturing and Resource Procurement

Our main manufacturing operations are located in Shenzhen, China. Our wholly-owned Chinese
subsidiary controls the planning, final assembly and final product testing, and uses a subcontractor for
subassembly processes. In late 2004, we entered into a lease for a new facility in China, permitting us to
increase our manufacturing capacity. This increased capacity enables us to move regional products to this low-
cost environment as well as meet increased demand.

We outsource the manufacture of certain products through contract manufacturers in Sweden and Brazil.
Certain high-volume products with global distribution requirements are being transferred to the Shenzhen,
China facility in 2005. In the U.S., we use a third-party contract manufacturer in metropolitan Phoenix,
Arizona for our networking products.

To control product costs, we centrally manage product documentation and material requirements
planning from our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters, utilizing an integrated enterprise system linking all
Hypercom manufacturing and design centers. Centralized management of the planning processes, combined
with regional procurement, enables us to ensure the quality and availability of our components. We continue to
look for opportunities to reduce the cost of existing products by working with our suppliers to seek more
favorable pricing, purchasing components in larger volumes to achieve lower unit costs, and through design
and engineering changes such as consolidating components and seeking greater efficiencies in product design.
Our product development and manufacturing organizations engineer and test our new products to ensure that
performance, quality and regulatory standards are met.

We rely on third-party suppliers for certain components of our POS payment systems and networking
products. We purchase directly from select suppliers or use distributors where flexibility is appropriate. Qur
suppliers must meet high standards of component quality and delivery performance. We generally have
multiple sources for raw materials, supplies and components, and are often able to acquire component parts
and materials on a volume discount basis.

Standards, Specifications and Certification Requirements

Electronic payment system providers must certify products and services with card associations, financial
institutions and payment processors, as well as comply with government and telecommunications company
regulations.

We comply with the following standards and requirements:

o Security Standards. Security standards in our industry are promulgated largely by government,
regional bank associations and card associations. These standards ensure the integrity of the payment
process and protect the privacy of consumers using electronic transaction systems. New standards are
continually being adopted or proposed as a result of worldwide fraud prevention initiatives, increasing
the need for new security solutions and technologies. We have developed a security architecture that
incorporates physical, electronic, operating system, encryption and application-level security measures
in order for us to remain compliant with the growing variety of international requirements. This
architecture is particularly successful in countries that have stringent and specific security
requirements. '

» EMV Standards. EMVCo’s goal with the EMYV standards has been to develop specifications that
define a set of requirements to ensure interoperability between chip cards and terminals on a global
basis, regardless of the manufacturer, the financial institution, or where the card is used or issued.
Specific certifications are required for all electronic payment systems and their application software.
We maintain EMV certifications across our applicable product lines.

!

o Payment Processor/Financial Institution Requirements. In the U.S., we are required to certify our
products with payment processors. We actively perform the essential Class B and Class A product
certifications with all the major payment processors in the U.S. and international markets. The Class B
certification process pertains to successful testing of the integrity of the host (interface) message
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formats with the payment processor’s requirements and specifications. Once the Class B certification
process is completed, the payment processor may clect to take the software application and the
hardware for additional in-house testing and support. Class A certification (which may take up to
12 months or more) includes more intensive functional and user-acceptance testing in order to
establish their help-desk infrastructure. Class A Certification enables payment processors to provide
direct support, deploy and promote the new products with their merchant base and sales force. We
have significant experience in attaining these critical payment processor certifications and have a large
portfolio of Class A certifications with major U.S. payment processors. We also have obtained
certifications from international financial institutions and payment processors so that our products can
be used to process transactions on their specific networks.

o Telecommunications Regulatory Authority and Carrier Requirements. Our products must comply
with government regulations, including those imposed by the Federal Communications Commission
and similar telecommunications authorities worldwide regarding emissions, hazardous materials,
radiation, safety and connections with telephone lines and radio networks. OQur products must also
comply with recommendations of quasi-regulatory authorities and of standards-setting committees.
Our products have been certified as compliant with a large number of national requirements, including
those of the Federal Communications Commission and Underwriters Laboratory in the U.S., and
similar local requirements in other countries. Wireless network carriers have standards with which
systems connected to their networks must comply. In addition to national requirements for telecommu-
nications systems, many wireless network carriers have their own certification process for devices to be
used on their networks.

Proprietary Rights

We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secret laws to establish and maintain our
proprietary rights in our technology and products. We currently hold patents issued in the U.S. and several
other countries relating to POS terminal products. We also have a number of pending U.S. and foreign patent
applications relating to our POS terminal products and networking products.

We currently hold trademark registrations in the U.S. and numerous other countries for the “Hypercom”
mark and logo. In addition, we have several other U.S, and foreign trademark registrations and pending U.S.
and foreign trademark applications relating to our products and services.

We embed copyright notices in our software products advising all users that Hypercom owns the rights to
the software. We also place copyright notices on documentation related to these products. We routinely rely
on contractual arrangements to protect our proprietary software programs, including written contracts prior to
product distribution or through the use of shrink-wrap license agreements. We typically do not obtain federal
copyright registrations for our software.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we employed approximately 1,488 people on a full-time basis, 453 of which are
located in the U.S., with the remaining 1,035 located internationally as set forth in the following table:

U.S. International Total

Sales and Marketing . ... ... . 84 44 128
OPETAtiONS . ..ottt 150 720 870
Research and Development ................... ... ............ 144 154 208
Finance and Administration................. ... ... ..o 75 117 192
Total Employees . ... .. .. i 453 1,035 1,488

We believe that we have an excellent relationship with our employees. Competition for employees is
intense in the electronic payments industry. We believe we have been successful in our efforts to recruit
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qualified employees, but we cannot guarantee that we will continue to be as successful in the future. Certain of
our employees at our facility in Sweden are subject to a collective bargaining agreement.

Available Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, Arizona, 85053, and
our telephone number is (602) 504-3000. Our website is located at www.hypercom.com. We make available
free of charge, through our website, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form §-K, and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file or furnish such material to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The
information found on our website is not part of this or any other report we file or furnish to the SEC.

Item 2. Properties

We own our 142,000 square foot corporate headquarters building, which is located in Phoenix, Arizona.
This building is also utilized for research and development, design, prototype manufacturing, testing and
repair. We lease an adjacent 23,800 square foot building, which is used primarily for our network solutions
products and services, pursuant to a lease that expires August 31, 2011,

We own an approximate 23,000 square foot office floor in Hong Kong that is utilized for administrative,
sales and support, and manufacturing support services. We also own an approximate 102,000 square foot
facility in Brazil that is utilized for administrative, warehouse, distribution, and sales and support services.

In late 2004, we entered into a lease for a new manufacturing facility in Shenzhen, China, that also
includes living quarters for the manufacturing staff of such facility, as is common when manufacturing in
China. The manufacturing portion of the facility is approximately 73,200 square feet. The lease for this facility
expires on September 30, 2010.

We also lease various facilities in Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Australia, Chile, China, Hungary, Japan,
Latvia, Mexico, Puerto Rico, Russia, Singapore, Sweden and the United Kingdom, for sales, support,
representation and research and development activities.

We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current operations and. will be sufficient for the
foreseeable future.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Hypercom currently is a party to various legal proceedings, including those noted below. While
management presently believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse affect on our financial position or results of operations, litigation is
subject to inherent uncertainties, and unfavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could include
monetary damages or, in cases where injunctive relief is sought, an injunction. Were an unfavorable ruling to
occur, it is possible such a ruling could have a material adverse impact on cur financial position or results of
operations in the period in which the ruling occurs or in future periods.

Shareholder Class Actions. In February 2005, Hypercom, its chief executive officer and its chief
financial officer were named as defendants in several purported shareholder class action lawsuits filed in
U.S. District Court, District of Arizona, on behalf of purchasers of Hypercom’s securities during the period
from April 30, 2004 to February 3, 2005, alleging violations of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These
lawsuits are based on our February 2005 announcement that certain leases in the United Kingdom had been
incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than operating leases, and that Hypercom would restate
its financial statements for the first three quarters of 2004. The lawsuits seek damages against the defendants
in an unspecified amount.

Shareholder Derivative Action. In March 2005, a shareholder derivative action was filed in the United
States District Court, District of Arizona, against Hypercom, its chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
and its board of directors alleging breach of fiduciary duty. This action is based on the same facts and
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circumstances alleged in the shareholder class actions discussed above, and alleges that the defendants
participated in issuing misleading and inaccurate statements and failed to implement adequate internal
controls. The action seeks damages in an unspecified amount against the individual defendants, attorney’s fees
and expenses, among other forms of relief. Hypercom is named solely as a nominal defendant in this action,
and no recovery is sought against Hypercom.

Hypercom believes that it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously defend against the
shareholder class actions and the shareholder derivative action.

Verve Maitters. Verve LL.C. (Verve) has filed lawsuits in various federal district courts and a
complaint with the International Trade Commission (ITC) against Hypercom alleging that Hypercom, as
well as other POS terminal manufacturers, have infringed certain patents that Verve purportedly owns. Verve
is seeking unspecified damages and injunctive relief in the federal court actions, and is seeking an exclusion
order by the ITC barring the importation of point of sale terminals that allegedly infringe a patent purportedly
owned by Verve. Hypercom believes that these claims are without merit and is vigorously defending these
actions. Hypercom has filed its own claims against Verve in U.S. District Court in Arizona seeking a
declaratory judgment that Verve’s patents are invalid and that Hypercom has not infringed these patents.
Hypercom has been successful in having a certain of the Verve federal court lawsuits transferred from other
jurisdictions to the U.S. District Court, District of Arizona. Further, the Administrative Law Judge in the ITC
proceeding has indicated that he will terminate the investigation generated by Verve’s complaint, based on his
finding that Verve did not own sufficient rights in the patent that is the subject of the ITC investigation, and
that Verve did not have standing to prosecute the ITC proceeding without the joinder of another party which
refused to join in the complaint. Hypercom has filed a motion for sanctions against Verve and its counsel,
seeking the recovery of Hypercom’s attorney’s fees and expenses in the ITC proceeding.

Brazilian Central Bank Administrative Proceeding. 1n May 2002, the Brazilian Central Bank Foreign
Capital and Exchange Department (Bank) commenced an administrative proceeding against Hypercom’s
subsidiary, Hypercom do Brasil Industria € Comércio Ltda. (HBI), aileging that it is subject to a fine totaling
R$197,317,538 (equivalent of U.S. $74,319,223 as of December 31, 2004) for failing to pay Hypercom, as the
parent company shipper and seller, for imported inventory items during the applicable 180 day period
established for payment in the respective Statements of Importation. In July 2002, HBI petitioned the Federal
Civil Court in Sao Paulo, Brazil to have the administrative proceeding suspended and the applicable provision
of the Brazilian law declared unconstitutional. In August 2002, the Court rejected HBI's motion for an
injunction and HBI filed an interlocutory appeal. In September 2002, the Judge reviewing the interlocutory
appeal issued a preliminary decision granting a stay of the administrative proceeding. Also in July 2002, HBI
filed an administrative defense with the Bank, which is presently under review and subject to no deadline. In
May 2003, the Federal Civil Court rendered judgment dismissing HBI's petition for a Writ of Mandamus. In
June 2003, HBI appealed this judgment. Hypercom believes that the fine is confiscatory in nature and illegal,
and does not believe that such fine will be charged on the amount established by the Bank.

Colleen E. Ryan v. Hypercom Corporation, et al. In 1998, the plaintiff filed this action alleging sexual
misconduct claims against Hypercom and two of its former executives. On July 2, 2004, following an April
2004 jury trial and verdict upholding the enforceability of Hypercom’s settlement agreement with this former
employee, the Superior Court of Maricopa County entered judgment in favor of Hypercom and its former
executives on all remaining claims. Thereafter, the plaintiff filed an appeal, which is currently in the briefing
stage.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securities Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,
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Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following are our executive officers as of March 1, 2005:

Christopher S. Alexander, 56: Chairman of the Board of Directors since July 2002; President and Chief
Executive Officer since November 2000; July 1999 to October 2000, President of Hypercom Transaction
Systems Group; 1998 to 1999, Chief Operating Officer, Hypercom Corporatlon 1993 to 1998 Chief Operating
Officer of Hypercom International.

John W. Smolak, 56: Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer since April
2002; September 2000 to March 2001, Chief Financial Officer of Suburban Propane L.L.P., a distributor,
Whippany, New Jersey; January 1999 to September 2000, Senior Vice President Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer of 1-800 Flowers.com, a retailer, Westbury, New York; and February 1995 to May
1998, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Lechters, Inc., a retailer, Harrison, New Jersey.

William A. Dowlin, 58: Executive Vice President, Product Development and Manufacturing, since
November 2003; President, Hypercom Manufacturing Resources, Inc., since July 1997.

Guilherme Blumenthal, 44: Executive Vice President, Sales and Operations, since November 2003.
October 2000 to October 2003, Senior Vice President, Finance and Operations, Transaction Systems Group,
Hypercom Corporation; August 1999 to September 2000, Senior Vice President and General Manager,
Hypercom Latin America; January 1999 to July 1999, Chief Operations Officer, Hypercom Latin America,
August 1997 to January 1999, Chief Operations Officer, Hypercom Brazil; January 1997 to July 1997, General
Manager of NetSet, a services company in Brazil, following its acquisition by Hypercom; March 1995 to
December 1996, founder and operator of Netset in Brazil.

Douglas J. Reich, 61: Senior Vice President since January 2004; Chief Compliance Officer since May
2003; General Counsel and Secretary since November 2001; and July 1996 to January 2001, Senior Vice
President, General Counsel and Secretary of Wavo Corporation, a digital media services provider, Phoenix,
Arizona.

PART 11

Item 5. Mavket for Registrant’s Common Egquity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “HYC.” The
following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock
as reported on the NYSE.

Year Ended 12/31/04

First Quarter. . ... . .. $7.96 $4.55
Second QUATIEr ... .ttt 8.51 6.41
Third Quarter . ... ... 8.46 6.57
Fourth Quarter . . ... .. . e 7.45 5.25
Year Ended 12/31/03

First QUarter. . oot e $4.37  $2.75
Second QUarter ... o 498 384
Third Quarter . . ... 5.68 4.00
Fourth Quarter. ... .. . . e e 5.59 4.50

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain our earnings
for our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
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future. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

As of March 4, 2005, we had approximately 73 stockholders of record and approximately 7,286 beneficial
stockholders.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

We announced a stock repurchase plan on August 15, 2003. Under the terms of the plan, we are
authorized to purchase up to $10 million of our common stock. There were no purchases made pursuant to the
plan during the year ended December 31, 2004. Since August 15, 2003, we have repurchased 60,000 shares of

our stock at an average price of $4.50 per share.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains selected consolidated financial data for the five years ended December 31,
2004, derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The selected financial data should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, related notes and the section of this annual report
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
Historical consolidated financial data may not be indicative of our future performance (amounts in thousands,

except share data and percentages).

Statements of Operations Data:

Netrevenue ............. ...,
Costs of revenue(l) ....................
Write-off of deferred contract costs(2) .. ..

Gross profit ...... ...
Percent of netrevenue . ...............

Research and development ..............
Selling, general, and administrative . ... ...
Restructuring charges(l) ...............

Total expenses .................. . ...

Income (loss) from continuing
OPErations ............c.cvuneniuno.n

Income (loss) before discontinued
operations and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle(3) (4) (5)

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations(6)(7) ...... ... ... ... ..

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle(8) .. ... .

Net income (loss) .. .................

Income (loss) per share:

Diluted income (loss) before discontinued
operations and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle .........

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle. . ... ... o o

Diluted net income (loss) per share . ...

Weighted average diluted shares .........
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents ........... ...
Marketable securities . ......... ... ... ..
Working capital ......... .. ... ..
Total assets(9) ........... ... .........
Short and long-term debt ...............
Total stockholders’ equity ...............

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$ 255155 $ 231514 $ 244965 § 236,773 § 269214
151,754 135,484 153,609 145,292 164,149
11,305 — — — —
92,096 96,030 91,356 91,481 105,065
36.1% 41.5% 37.3% 38.6% 39.0%
27,188 24,163 24,744 28,107 38,666
66,313 58,832 57,888 63,547 82,078

— — 4,434 — —

93,501 82,995 87,066 91,654 120,744

$ (1,405) $ 13,035 § 4290 % (173) $ (15,679)
$  (8,662) $ 3965 % (24,3502) $ (11,668) $  (25,751)
— 7,233 (14,816) (8.240) (5,840)

— — (21,766) — —

$  (8,662) $ 11,098 $ (61,084) $ (19,908) $ (31,591)
$ (0.17) $ 0.08 § (0.53) $ (0.32) % (0.75)
—_ 0.14 (0.32) (0.22) (0.17)

— — {0.47) — —

$ (0.17) $ 022 % (1.32) $ (0.54) $ (0.92)
51,251,975 50,350,849 46,141,894 36,643,819 34,183,803
$ 23445 $ 65415 0§ 23069 $ 19769 $ 13,008
69,962 17,400 — — 2,110
159,789 155,048 128,179 126,088 73,429
277,260 265.870 260,400 337,409 367,888
8,829 9.857 25,025 67,888 100,391
205,372 204,297 187,972 210,226 207,004

(1) During the 2002 third quarter, we committed to a profit improvement plan which included the closure of
offices around the world in favor of a more cost-effective distributor sales model and the termination of
our direct manufacturing operations in Brazil. Restructuring charges in cost of sales include $2.0 million
related to the write-down of inventories and other related costs. Restructuring charges of $4.4 million,
which are separately stated, include $3.6 million related to the write-down of a building and other fixed
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(N

(3)

(9)

assets to their estimated fair value and $0.8 million related to termination costs and other charges. See
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the 2004 second quarter, we recorded an $11.3 million charge to cost of revenue to write-off all
costs previously deferred under our long-term contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry. Our decision
was principally due to the lack of timely acknowledgement and acceptance of the pending claim, the
expiration of the contract during April 2004 and the delay in the negotiation of the extension of the
maintenance element of the contract. We believe that the delay was due to an internal scandal within the
Brazilian Health Ministry, which in no way relates to Hypercom or our pending claim, but nevertheless,
cast doubt and concern over the ability to recover, timely, the amounts owed under the contract. See
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the third quarter of 2000, we wrote-off our remaining $4.1 million investment in Cirilium
Corporation (Cirilium), a joint corporate venture that we had formed in late 1999 with Inter-Tel Inc.
Through September 30, 2000, we had accounted for our investment in Cirilium on the equity method and
had reported $5.8 million in losses in connection with this investment. This write-off and the reporting of
these losses, in the total amount of $9.9 million, contributed to our net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2000.

During 2002, we recorded a $2.6 million loss on early extinguishment of debt in connection with the early
retirement of two term loans. The loss resulted from the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs and
a loan discount associated with our term loans.

During 2002, we increased the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets by $20.0 million, of which
$16.0 million contributed to our loss before discontinued operations and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle and $4.0 million was recorded in discontinued operations related to Golden Eagle
Leasing for the period ending December 31, 2002.

During September 2002, we identified certain unprofitable businesses and, effective with the decision to
hold these operating units for sale, recorded a loss of $8.0 million to write-down the assets to their
estimated fair value. For comparative purposes, all prior operating results of these unprofitable businesses
have been reclassified to reflect the results of operations in discontinued operations.

During 2003, we completed the disposition of all remaining operating units identified and initially held for
sale in September 2002. In connection with the disposition of these operating units, we recorded a loss on
sale of the units totaling $3.2 million during 2003 comprised of a $0.3 million cash infusion made by us in
accordance with the terms of the sale, non-cash inventory and fixed asset write-downs of $1.4 million,
severance costs of $0.5 million, the write-off of $0.8 million in uncollectible accounts receivable, and
facility lease and other exit costs of $0.2 million.

Consistent with our strategy of disposing of operating units not aligned with its core business, we sold our
direct finance lease subsidiary, Golden Eagle Leasing, effective October 1, 2003, for $30.0 million gross
cash proceeds, and recorded a $7.0 millicn gain net of severance and other exit costs. As a result of the
disposition, the net operating results of Golden Eagle Leasing have been reported within discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

During 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under the transition
provisions of SFAS 142, we evaluated our reporting units for impairment of goodwill and recorded a
$21.8 million write-off primarily attributable to goodwill associated with the 2000 acquisition of Golden
Eagle Leasing.

Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

For a presentation of certain of the above information on a quarterly basis for each of our four quarters

refer to Note 19 of our audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following sets forth a discussion and analysis of Hypercom Corporation’s financial condition and
results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2004. This discussion and analysis should be read
in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements. Our actual results may differ
significantly from the results discussed in such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Exhibit 99.1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K entitled “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk
Factors,” in the discussion below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate past judgments and our
estimates, including those related to bad debts, product returns, long-term contracts, inventories, goodwill and
other intangible assets, income taxes, financing operations, foreign currency, and contingencies and litigation.
We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue and Accounts Receivable

We recognize revenue for product sales pursuant to Stafl Accounting Bulletin No. 101 and No. 104,
Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements (SAB 101 and 104) which is generally upon delivery of product.
Although we comply with the requirements of SAB 101 and 104 upon shipment of product and the recording
of revenue, we continually evaluate our accounts receivable for any bad debts or product returns and make
estimates for any bad debt allowances or product return reserves as the specific situations dictate. We
generally recognize services revenue when services have been provided and collection of invoiced amounts is
reasonably assured. Amounts received in advance of services being rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.
Operating lease revenue is recognized monthly over the lease term. The cost of units leased under operating
leases are included in our balance sheet under “Property, plant and equipment.”

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. We compute such allowance based upon a specific customer account
review of our larger customers’ and balances in excess of 90 days old. Our assessment of our customers’ ability
to pay generally includes direct contact with the customer, investigation into our customers’ financial status, as
well as consideration of our customers’ payment history with us. If the financial condition of our customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required. If we determine, based on our assessment, that it is more likely than not that our customers will
be unable to pay, we will charge off the accounts receivable. For balances less than 90 days old and customers
not large enough to warrant a specific review, we record an allowance based on set percentages depending
upon the age of the respective accounts receivable balance.

We record reductions to revenue based on estimates of product returns, The estimate of product returns is
based on historical return trends as well as our assessment of individual customer orders and shipments. Such
returns can result from customer nonpayment, in which we request that our product be returned, or a decision
on the part of the customer to return the product.
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Sales-Type Leases

Certain sales of product are sold under a capital lease arrangement, recorded as a sales-type lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, as amended. Sales-type lease revenues consist of the
initial sale of the product shipped and the interest and maintenance elements of the lease payments as they are
carned. We maintain an allowance for estimated uncollectible sales type lease receivables at an amount that
we believe is sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our sales-type lease portfolio. Our
allowance is determined principally on the basis of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of
the credit quality of the sales-type lease customer base. If loss rates increase or credit conditions at our
customers deteriorate, we may need to increase our allowance for uncollectible sales-type leases.

In addition, as part of the initial recording of our sales-type leases, we estimate the unguaranteed residual
value of the equipment. This is the estimated fair value of the equipment that will be returned to or purchased
from us at the end of the initial lease period. Our estimate of the residual value is based on industry standards
and our actual experience. If market conditions change negatively, it could have an adverse impact on the
estimated residual value amount.

Long-term Contract Revenue

We recognize revenues and an estimated gross profit on long-term contracts upon the attainment of
scheduled performance milestones under the percentage of completion method. We follow this method since
contracts contain well-defined performance milestones and we can make reasonably dependable estimates of
the costs applicable to various stages of the contract.

During 2004, the final maintenance phase of our only long-term contract expired. We recorded an
$11.3 million charge in 2004 to write-off all deferred contract costs previously recorded on this contract. See
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inventory

We carry our inventory at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, adjusted for
absorption of manufacturing variances, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis.

For purposes of our inventory lower of cost or market (LCM) calculations, we classify inventory into
three categories: fully saleable, slow moving and potentially obsolete. We do not record any write down for
fully saleable inventory. Inventory not expected to be sold within the upcoming 12 month period, based upon
future demand assumptions, is considered slow moving and written down based upon the projected sell
through period. We write down potentially obsolete inventory to estimated salvage value, if any. If actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs
may be required.

Deferred Taxes

During 2002, we recorded a full valuation allowance on our then remaining unreserved deferred tax asset
balance due to the impact of a continued economic downturn on our estimated U.S. sourced future income.
Since 2002, we have continued to fully reserve for all deferred tax balances. As a result, there are no remaining
unreserved balances of deferred tax assets reported on the balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.
The valuation allowance is subject to reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized
or, operating profits, in the tax jurisdictions giving rise to the deferred tax assets, become sustainable at a level
that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Tax(SFAS 109). The
recoverability criteria in SFAS 109 requires our judgment of whether it is more likely than not, based on an
evaluation of positive and negative evidence, that a valuation allowance is not needed. If in the future, positive
evidence of sufficient quality and quantity overcomes the negative evidence, we would reverse all or a portion
of the valuation allowance resulting in a decrease to our income tax expense in our consolidated statement of
operations. We evaluate the realizability of the deferred tax assets and need for valuation allowances quarterly.

19




We do business in a number of different countries. Tax authorities may scrutinize the various tax
structures employed by us in these countries. We believe that we maintain adequate tax reserves, including our
valuation reserve for deferred tax assets, to offset the potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit in these
countries. If such amounts ultimately prove to be unnecessary, the resulting reversal of such reserves would
result in tax benefits being recorded in the period the reserves are no longer deemed necessary. If such
amounts ultimately prove to be less than the ultimate assessment, a future charge to expense or reduction to
our related valuation reserve would result. In addition, any potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit
could affect the individual items that comprise our fully-reserved deferred tax asset balance.

Contingencies and Litigation

On an ongoing basis, management ‘monitors the need to provide an estimated loss contingency arising
from normal operations or litigation matters. The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims,
which have arisen in the ordinary course of its business. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, we have accrued for
all probable and estimable contingencies. We rely on our in-house counsel and outside counsel to advise us
about ongoing litigation matters. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these
matters and the proceedings disclosed above, we believe, based upon the information available at this time,
that the expected outcome of these matters, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse
effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Overview of Financial Results

The following overview will highlight certain key events and factors impacting our financial performance
over the past three years:

Year 2004

For 2004, we recorded a net loss of $8.7 million ($0.17 loss per share) on revenues of $255.2 million.
Our 10.2% revenue growth in 2004 was primarily due to bringing our new 32-bit products to market,
expanding our multi-lane and quick service restaurant customer (QSR) base, and serving the growing
European market led by tightening security standards. The 2004 results include a second quarter charge
of $11.3 million to write-off all costs previously deferred under our contract with the Brazilian Health
Ministry. We continue to actively pursue the claim with the Brazilian Health Ministry, although ultimate
recovery cannot be assured.

The increase in revenues was tempered by a decline in gross profit as a percent of revenues resulting
primarily from the aforementioned deferred contract charge in Brazil. To a lesser degree, the 2004 gross
profit percentage was negatively impacted by pricing pressures in certain markets, a lower margin on a
high volume contract with a domestic processor, sales to high volume multi-lane and quick service
restaurant customers, and incremental inventory reserves attributable to technology obsolescence induced
by our new product offerings and altered market demand for dated products and components. Addition-
ally, the 2004 gross profit percentage was negatively impacted by the reclassification of certain leases as
operating leases rather than sales-type leases. See Notes 2 and 19 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. -

Operating expenses increased by $10.5 million in 2004, from $83.0 million in 2003 to $93.5 million
in 2004. Operating expenses represented 36.7% of net revenues in 2004 versus 35.8% in 2003. This
increase was primarily due to costs for Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance and higher
selling expenses principally related to accelerating expansion into certain markets in response to 2005
market opportunities and pre-selling costs related to longer sales cycle multi-lane contracts.

Non-operating expenses (net interest expense, foreign currency losses and other income/loss)
decreased by $1.5 million in 2004. This decrease is primarily due to higher interest income as a result of
our increased cash balance and rising interest rates and lower interest expense as a result of reduced debt
fees and the cessation of amortization of debt issuance costs in 2004. {

{
N
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We continued to build our cash reserves, increasing our total cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities from $82.8 million at December 31, 2003 to $93.4 million at December 31, 2004. During 2004,
our working capital increased by $4.7 million.

In 2005, we believe that technology requirements in the various marketplaces will continue to shift
towards a 32-bit architecture driven by market requirements for enhanced multi-application and internet
protocol (IP) enabling devices that significantly reduce transaction processing time. We believe our 2005
revenue will exceed the 2004 amount as shipments of our 32-bit technology terminals gain momentum
led by our 'multi-lane and unattended terminal product lines. We anticipate that the average selling price
of our products will decline in 2005 due to pricing pressures from our competitors and we intend to offset,
at least partially, the reduction in selling price by reducing production costs of our terminals. We intend to
further reduce our product costs through design improvements and shifting certain high-volume
production to lower-cost manufacturing regions, such as China. We also intend to have a market-centric
approach to our research and product development activities such that we will not incur expenses that do
not represent known revenue opportunities. We do not anticipate any significant further fixed costs and
therefore expect to leverage both our selling, general and administrative expenses on anticipated higher
revenues. We continue to evaluate our direct sales channel infrastructure and wili pursue alternate
channels, such as distributors, in regions where it makes economic sense to do so. We also intend to
continue to refine our global tax strategy and foreign exchange hedging program to lower expenses in
these areas. Our projected revenue growth, engineered cost reductions and expense savings can not be
ultimately assured.

Year 2003

The year 2003 was highlighted by the completion of our profit improvement and restructuring plan
initiated in September 2002 with a resulting improvement in operating income and net income,
strengthening of our balance sheet, and the sale of Golden Eagle Leasing.

Completing our restructuring plan during 2003 allowed us to focus on our core terminal and network
systems business, which resulted in improved gross margins while maintaining operating expenses at
levels appropriate to support the core business activities. Gross margins improved principally from
continuing improvements in cost reductions in our core set of product offerings through reductions in
material costs as well as improved manufacturing efficiencies. Operating expenses were essentially
unchanged from 2002 reflecting a leveling off of spending to match our business model as contemplated
under our profit improvement and restructuring plan initiated in September 2002.

In addition to improving our profits, we were able to strengthen our balance sheet as of Decem-
ber 31, 2003 compared to December 31, 2002, Improvements in our balance sheet included an increase in
cash and short-term investment balances, elimination of current debt and increased working capital and
stockholders’ equity. We maintained a $10 million revolving line of credit with no borrowings during
2003. These achievements were principally a result of our profit improvements, improvements in our .
accounts receivable days sales outstanding and inventory turnover, and the sale of Golden Eagle Leasing.

While we continued to experience improvements in the financial performance of Golden Eagle
Leasing, we decided a direct-finance leasing operation was outside our core business and did not have a
long-term role in our strategic plan. Consequently, we sold Golden Eagle Leasing in the fourth quarter of
2003 resulting in a gain of $7.0 million, with gross proceeds received of $30.0 million.

Year 2002

The year 2002 was highlighted by the completion of a private placement of our common stock,
significant charges related to the carrying value of goodwill and deferred tax assets, the implementation of
a profit improvement plan and a significant improvement in income from continuing operations.

In the first quarter of 2002, we completed the issuance and sale of common stock in a private equity
offering. Net proceeds from the offering of $36.5 million were used principally to pay off high-cost debt.
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As a result of the early extinguishment of debt, we recorded a loss on early extinguishment of debt
relating to the write-off of debt issuance costs in the amount of $2.6 million in the first quarter of 2002.

On January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The adoption
of SFAS 142 resulted in the complete write-off of goodwill balances, existing at January 1, 2002, in the
amount of $21.8 million. In accordance with SFAS 142, this write-off' was reported as a cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle in the statement of operations.

During the third quarter of 2002, we increased our valuation allowance on our then remaining
deferred tax assets by $20.0 million. The increase in the valuation allowance increased our tax expense
attributable to both continuing operations and discontinued operations by $20.0 million. There were no
remaining balances of deferred tax assets reported on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2002.

As discussed further in Management’s Discussion and Analysis and in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, we undertook a profit improvement plan in 2002, which resulted in restructuring
certain operations and holding other operations for sale as discontinued operations. The restructuring
costs element of the plan were reported as expenses within income from continuing operations, while the
losses from the discontinued operations were reported separately as part of our net loss. The restructuring
charges totaling $6.4 million included write-downs of assets, principally inventories and fixed assets, as
well as accruals for severance and other operating expenses. Losses from discontinued operations totaling
$14.8 million included $8.0 million in initial write-downs of assets to fair value, as well as the operating
results of the discontinued operations during 2002,

The following should be read in light of the matters highlighted in the Overview.

Results of Continuing Operations

The following table sets forth the operating results expressed as a percentage of net revenue for the
periods indicated. Results for any one or more periods are not necessarily indicative of future results.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

NEt FEVENUES . . . oottt e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs Of TEVENUE . .. oo 59.5 58.5 62.7
Write-off of deferred contract costs ............. ... ... .. 4.4 — —
Gross profit .. . 36.1 415 37.3
Research and development ....... .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 10.7 10.4 10.1
Selling, general and administrative .......... ... ... .. ... ... ...... 26.0 25.4 23.6
Restructuring charges . . ... ... — — 1.8
Income (loss) from continuing operations ........................ (0.6) 5.7 1.8
Interest and other income net of interest and other expense . ........ .. — (1.0) (1.3)
Foreign currency 10SS .. ..ottt (1.3)  (1.2) (2.5)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ... ........................... — — (1.1)
Income (loss) before taxes, discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle .. ........ ... ... ... ..... (1.9) 35 (3.3)
Provision for income taxes . . ... .. oot e (L.5) (1.8) (6.7)
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle ............. .. ... ... (3.4) 1.7 (10.0)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ........................ — 3.1 (6.0)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ................. — — (8.9)

Net income (10SS) ... e 34)% 48% (24.9)%




Net revenue by geographic region is presented in the following table as a percentage of net revenues for
the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

Revenues by Region” 2004 2003 2002
United States. . ... .o 322% 33.0% 33.9%
Burope ..o 33.6 311 23.8
Latin America, including Mexico ....... ... ... .. oo 17.3 18.5 26.6
Asia/Pacific . ... 16.9 17.4 15.7
Totals .o e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The results of continuing operations discussed herein exclude the operations of the operating units being
reported as discontinued operations. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our revenues relate primarily to the sale and lease of point-of-sale and point-of-transaction terminals,
peripheral devices, transaction networking devices, transaction management systems, application software and
information delivery services (collectively, product revenue). Additionally, we operate several service
businesses that provide full on-site support services such as installation, training, repair, help desk services and
transaction transport (collectively, service revenue). No other type of revenue exceeded 10% of our
consolidated net revenues in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

Compavison of Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of Increase
2004 Revenue 2003 Revenue  (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)

Net revenue:

Product and other .................... $228,109 89.4% $208,929 90.2% 19,180
Services . ..o 27,046 10.6 22,585 9.8 4,461
Total netrevenue . .................... 255,155 100.0 231,514  100.0 23,641
Costs of revenue:
Product and other . ................... 131,033 57.4 118,676 56.8 12,357
Write-off of deferred contract costs ... ... 11,305 5.0 — — 11,305
Services ... 20,721 76.6 16,808 74.4 3,913
Total costs of revenue . ................ 163,059 63.9 135,484 58.5 27,575
Gross Profit:
Product and other .................... 85,771 37.6 90,253  43.2 (4,482)
Services . ... 6,325 23.4 5,777 25.6 548
Grossprofit ................ .. .. ...... 92,096 36.1 96,030 41.5 (3,934)
Research and development ............... 27,188 10.7 24,163 10.4 3,025
Selling, general and administrative....... .. 66,313 26.0 58,832 25.4 7,481

Income (loss) from continuing operations .. $ (1,405) . (0.6)% $ 13,035 5.7% $(14,440)

Net revenue

Our year over year 10.2% increase in net revenue is principally the result of product sales in our European
and U.S. markets. The increase in European revenues arose as customers purchased new terminals to meet the
security compliance standards set-forth by Europay, Mastercard and Visa (EMV). EMV governs the
replacement of traditional magnetic strip cards with chip cards. Merchants must upgrade their terminals to
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meet the new EMV standards or potentially bear the liability of fraudulent transactions which chip technology
would have prevented. We anticipate continued demand due to the EMV initiative throughout 2005.

Revenue growth in the U.S. related to product sales to multi-lane and quick service restaurant customers
which we had not historically served. The introduction of new products including the L4100 terminal and
unattended units allowed us to expand in the marketplace which contributed significantly to our record 2004
fourth quarter sales. We anticipate continual growth in this market in 2005.

Offsetting our 2004 revenue growth was the impact of an accounting correction made during the fourth
quarter following our determination that certain leases originated by our UK subsidiary during the first three
quarters of 2004 were incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than operating leases. This
accounting error, which relates to approximately 3,200 leases, resulted in a $3.2 million reduction in net
revenue for the first three quarters of 2004. See Notes 2 and 19 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Finally, net revenue in 2003 benefited by a $2.4 million transaction in Brazil involving the sale of fully
depreciated terminals we had previously leased to a third party under an operating lease. Excluding the
$2.4 million in revenue in 2003, net revenue increased $26.0 million or 11.4% from 2003. No similar
transaction occurred during 2004.

The increase in services revenues was primarily due to additional services provided by NetSet, our service
business in Brazil. During 2004, NetSet signed a service contract with one major new customer and increased
service volumes to an existing customer. Additionally, service revenues increased in 2004 due to the start-up of
HBNet, our transaction transport business.

Costs of revenue

Our costs of revenue include the costs of raw materials, manufacturing labor, overhead and subcontracted
manufacturing costs, as well as loan loss provisions with respect to sales-type leases. Cost of revenue,
excluding the write-off of deferred contract costs discussed below, as a percent of revenue increased to 57.4%
in 2004 compared to 56.8% in 2003. The year over year increase in costs of revenue as a percent of revenues
was principally attributable to incremental inventory reserves totaling $3.7 million recorded during 2004. The
incremental inventory reserves were attributable to technology obsolescence induced by our new product
offerings and altered demand for dated products and components.

Write-off of deferred contract costs

During the second quarter of 2004, we recorded an $11.3 million charge to cost of revenue to write-off all
costs previously deferred under our long-term contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry. See Note 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our decision was principally due to the lack of timely acknowledgement
and acceptance of the pending claim, the expiration of the contract during April 2004 and the delay in the
negotiation of the extension of the maintenance element of the contract. We believe that the delay was due to
an internal scandal within the Brazilian Health Ministry, which in no way relates to Hypercom or our pending
claim, but nevertheless, cast doubt and concern over the ability to recover, timely, the amounts owed under the
contract. We are actively pursuing discussions with the Brazilian Health Ministry regarding both the
collection of the contract costs as well as renewal of the maintenance element of the contract. However, there
is no certainty as to how much will ultimately be collected or that the maintenance contract will ultimately be
extended. ‘

Gross profit

Gross profit as a percent of revenue decreased to 36.1% in 2004 from 41.5% in 2003. The product and
other gross profit percentage was 37.6% in 2004 compared to 43.2% in 2003, while the services gross profit
percentage was 23.4% in 2004 and 25.6% in 2003. The decline in the product and other gross profit percentage
is principally attributable to the provision recorded to reserve all costs previously deferred under cur contract
with the Brazilian Health Ministry. Excluding the contract provision, the product and other gross profit
percentage was 42.6% in 2004. The year over year decline in margin, exclusive of the Brazilian Health
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Ministry charge in 2004 and the previously mentioned impact of the sale of the fully depreciated terminals in
Brazil in 2003, is principally attributable to lower average selling price and gross profit on comparable products
sold under the terms of a new domestic processor agreement and incremental inventory reserves recorded
during 2004.

The decrease in the services gross profit percentage was primarily attributable to fewer high-margin
special service projects, such as software uploads and pinpad upgrade programs, in 2004 than 2003.

Research and development

Research and development expenses consist mainly of software and hardware engineering costs and the
cost of development personnel. Research and development expenses as a percent of revenue was 10.7% in 2004
compared to 10:4% in 2003. On a relative dollar basis, 2004 spending increased $3.0 million compared to 2003.
The increase in research and development spending is reflective of our efforts to accelerate the introduction of
new products including our Optimum product family and an internet protocol (IP) enabling device, IN-tact,
that converts existing Hypercom terminals into faster IP-enabled card payment terminals.

Selling general and administrative

Sales and marketing expenses, administrative personnel costs, and facilities operations make up the
selling, general and administrative expenses. As a percent of revenue, selling, general and administrative
expense was 26.0% for 2004 compared to 25.4% in 2003. On a relative dollar basis, spending increased
$7.5 million or 12.7%. The increase is principally attributable to variable costs attributed to our increase in
revenues and additional professional fees incurred to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In
addition, during 2004 we recorded a $0.7 million charge to write-off a marketing right that we determined had
no future value.

Interest income, interest expense, and foreign currency

We recognized $1.2 million in interest income during 2004 compared to only $0.4 million in 2003. This
increase is principally attributable to our high cash, cash equivalent, and short-term investment balances
maintained throughout 2004 resulting from the sale of Golden Eagle Leasing in October 2003 and our positive
cash flow from operations. We incurred interest expense of $1.4 million in 2004 compared to $2.5 million in
2003. The decline in interest expense is primarily due to the continued decline in our long-term debt, reduced
fees under our Senior Secured Credit Facility, which was amended effective December 31, 2003, and the
reduction in amortization of debt issuance costs, as the majority of costs were fully amortized as of July 2004.
Foreign currency loss for 2004 was $3.2 million compared with $2.8 million in 2003. The increase in foreign
currency expense is principally attributable to the continued depreciation of the US dollar against our foreign
currency exposures compared to 2003.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense before discontinued operations for federal, state and foreign taxes was $3.8 million
and $4.1 million for the years ended 2004 and 2003, respectively. Income tax expense is principally comprised
of income taxes associated with our profitable foreign locations.

During 2004, we continued to provide full valuation reserves against our deferred tax assets. These
reserves are subject to reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized or, the
operating profits in the U.S. become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under
SFAS 109. Due to our net operating loss position and our provision for a full valuation reserve against our
deferred tax assets, the consolidated effective tax rates for 2004 and 2003 are not meaningful.

We do business in a number of different countries. Tax authorities may scrutinize the various tax
structures employed by us in these countries. We believe that we maintain adequate tax reserves, including our
valuation allowance, to offset the potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit in these countries. If such
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amounts ultimately prove to be unnecessary, the resulting reversal of such reserves would result in tax benefits
being recorded in the period the reserves are no longer deemed necessary. If such amounts ultimately prove to
be less than the ultimate assessment, a future charge to expense or reduction of our valuation allowance would
result. In addition, any potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit could affect the individual items that
comprise our fully reserved deferred tax asset balance.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of Increase
2003 Revenue 2002 Revenue (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)

Net revenue:

Product and other ................. $208,929 90.2% $223,658 91.3% $(14,729)

Services . ... 22,585 9.8 21,307 8.7 1,278

Total net revenue . ................. 231,514 100.0 244965 100.0 (13,451)
Costs of revenue:

Product and other .......... ... ... 118,676 56.8 134,893 60.3 (16,217)

Services ... 16,808 74.4 18,716 87.8 {1,908)
Total costs of revenue ................ 135,484 58.5 153,609 62.7 (18,125)
Gross profit:

Product and other ................. 90,253 432 88,765 39.7 1,488

Services . .. ... 5,777 25.6 2,591 12.2 3,186

Total costs of revenue . ............. 96,030 41.5 91,356 37.3 4,674
Research and development . ........... 24,163 10.4 24,744 10.1 (581)
Selling, general and administrative. . . . .. 58,832 254 57,888 23.6 944
Restructuring charges ................ — — 4,434 1.8 (4,434)
Income from continuing operations . . . .. $ 13,035 57% $ 4,290 1.8% §$§ 8,745

Net revenue

Net revenue for 2003 decreased $13.5 million or 5.5% compared to 2002. Net revenues for 2002 included
the attainment of a performance milestone under our Brazilian Health Ministry contract resulting in revenue
of $8.6 million during 2002, versus $1.4 million in revenue recognized under the same contract in 2003.
Performance milestones under this contract were substantially less than the milestones achieved in 2002, as we
had entered the maintenance phase of this contract. In addition, as mentioned above, during 2003 we
transacted the sale of terminals that we had previously leased to a third party to derive rental income under an
operating lease. The sale of these terminals was accounted for under a sales-type lease arrangement and
contributed $2.4 million in revenues. Exclusive of the revenues for the Brazilian Health Ministry contract in
both years and the revenues under the sales-type lease arrangement in 2003, net revenues declined during the
year ended December 31, 2003 by $8.7 million compared to 2002. This decline is principally due to a decline
in Network Systems revenues associated with one of its largest contracts. Revenues under this contract in
2003 were essentially limited to software maintenance, while 2002 included both hardware deliveries and
software maintenance. The decrease in product and other revenues was partially offset by an increase in
services revenues, primarily due to the addition of a new service business in Mexico that began operations
during 2002.
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Costs of revenue and gross profit

Our cost of revenue includes the cost of raw materials, manufacturing labor, overhead and subcontracted
manufacturing costs, as well as loan loss provisions with respect to sales-type leases. Cost of revenue as a
percent of total net revenue was 58.5% in 2003 compared with 62.7% in 2002. Gross profit as a percent of total
net revenue for 2003 was 41.5% compared to 37.3% in 2002.

Both the change in cost of revenue and the gross profit were affected by various events in both 2003 and
2002. As discussed previously, 2003 included $1.4 million in revenue from the Brazilian Health Ministry
contract versus $8.6 million recognized in 2002. This contract carried a fully absorbed operating margin
estimated at 9.1% thus impacting the overall gross profit percentage as revenues were inconsistent between
periods. Furthermore, our 2003 gross profit benefited from the sale of fully depreciated terminals we had
previously leased to a third party, contributing $2.4 million to our gross profit in 2003.

Additionally, cost of product and other revenues for 2002 includes the effects of restructuring charges in
the amount of $2.0 million relative to our restructuring activity discussed further below. In connection with
our restructuring, we transitioned our manufacturing operations in Brazil to a contract manufacturer. During
this transition period certain sales in the Brazilian market were supplied from our factory in China for which
importation and. taxes reduced our gross profit by approximately $0.8 million in 2002. We also wrote down
inventory and incurred other incremental charges relative to assessments of net realizable value amounting to
$0.7 million during the third quarter of 2002.

Exclusive of the Brazilian Health Ministry revenues and related cost of revenues, the sale of fully
depreciated terminals in 2003 and the restructuring and other charges incurred during 2002, gross profit as a
percentage of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 would be 41.1% and 39.8%,
respectively. The increase in 2003 is a result of our continued manufacturing and product cost reductions and
improved pricing in certain service operations.

The services gross profit percentage was 25.6% in 2003 compared to 12.2% in 2002. The 2002 services
gross profit includes a net gross loss of $1.3 million associated with the start-up of our service business in
Mexico.

Research and development

Research and development expenses consist mainly of software and hardware engineering costs and the
cost of development personnel. Research and development expenses for 2003 decreased $0.6 million or 2.3%.
The spending in research and development was flat year over year due to our continued focus on a cost
efficient approach to research and development. During 2003 development initiatives were primarily focused
on reducing the component costs of existing product and developing select new products having a commer-
cially feasible market demand.

Selling, general and administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist of sales and marketing expenses, administrative
personnel costs, facilities operations and other corporate overhead. These expenses increased $0.9 million or
1.6% to $58.8 million for 2003 compared to $57.9 million in 2002. The slight increase principally represents
certain additions to our direct sales activities as we identify new markets and promote new product offerings.

Restructuring charges

In September 2002, we committed to a plan to improve profits in our POS and Network Systems
segment. The plan entailed downsizing and outsourcing certain operations and streamlining product offerings,
changing to a distributor sales model versus a direct sales model in certain international locations, prioritizing
and rationalizing research and development expenditures and disposing of certain unprofitable operations. The
profit improvement plan encompassed both restructuring activities to be accounted and reported under
SFAS 146, as well as discontinued operations to be accounted and reported under SFAS 144, See Note 10 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The restructuring charges encompassed write downs of fixed assets and inventory, one-time termination
benefits and other miscellaneous accruals incurred in connection with our profit improvement plan. The
following table sets the amount incurred during the year ended December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

2002 Incurred

Restructuring charges in Cost of Sales
Write down of inventories and refated costs ......... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... $2,033

Total restructuring charges in costof sales . .............. ... ........... $2,033

Restructuring charges

Write down of building to fairvalue. .......... ... .. L $2,184
Write down of fixed assets to fair value .. .......... ... . . . . ... .. 1,388
Write down of other assets to fair value. ............ ... .. .. ... .. L, 233
One-time termination benefits .. . ... ... ... ... . . e 482
Miscellaneous operating accruals ............. . i 147

Total restructuring charges ........ ... . i $4,434

There were no restructuring charges incurred in 2003.

Interest expense and foreign currency

We incurred $2.5 million in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to
$4.2 million in 2002. Interest expense for 2003 consisted principally of interest expense on long-term
borrowings and amortization of deferred financing charges. Interest expense for 2002 included essentially the
same elements as 2003 plus additional interest incurred on two term loans with principal balances totaling
$18.6 million and a $3.1 million note from a former director and former stockholder outstanding during the
first quarter of 2002. The term loans and note were paid off in March 2002 with proceeds we received from a
private placement of common stock.

Foreign currency losses totaling $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 were largely
attributable to forward contract hedge premiums and local transaction losses in our Swedish subsidiary.
Foreign currency losses for the year ended December 31, 2002 of $6.1 million related to the devaluation of the
Brazilian real and Argentinean peso partially offset by gains in the British pound. The reduced loss is a result
of a hedging program we implemented during 2002 to mitigate foreign currency exposures.

Loss on early extinguishment of debt

During 2002 we repaid two term loans with principal balances of $15.3 million and $3.3 million,
respectively, under our credit facility, $3.1 million in outstanding loans from a director and principal
stockholder and reduced the outstanding borrowings under our $25 million revolving credit facility. In
connection with the early retirement of the term loans, we recorded a loss on retirement of debt of $2.6 million
during the first quarter of 2002 principally resulting from the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs and
a loan discount associated with our term loans.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense before discontinued operations and cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle for federal, state and foreign taxes was $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 and
$16.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The income tax provision for 2003 was comprised of
income taxes associated with our profitable foreign locations.

During the third quarter of 2002, we recorded a full valuation allowance on our then remaining
unreserved deferred tax asset balance of approximately $20.0 million. We further increased our valuation
allowance in 2002 for net increases in deferred tax assets related to expense charges that were not deductible
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or recoverable. The increase in the valuation allowance was based on the weight of all available evidence,
principally influenced by the continued U.S. derived losses in the third quarter of 2002 as well as cumulative
U.S. derived losses in recent years. The U.S. derived losses in the third quarter of 2002 and cumulatively over
recent years together with an uncertain economic outlook for the U.S., were deemed to be significant negative
evidence. As a result, we determined we did not meet the “more likely than not” recoverability criteria in
SFAS 109, requiring positive evidence of sufficient quality and quantity to overcome the negative evidence in
order to support a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed. The valuation allowance is subject to
reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized or, the operating profits in the
U.S. become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS 109. There were no
remaining unreserved balances of deferred tax assets reported on the balance sheet at December 31, 2002.

In addition to deferred tax expenses, which principally relate to our valuation allowance increases, the
income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2002 was comprised of income tax expenses from
foreign locations with taxable income and a current tax benefit for certain U.S. losses in which we filed a claim
for refund. As a result of this combination of occurrences, the effective tax rate in 2002 was not meaningful.

There was no income tax expense recorded in discontinued operations during 2003, as the income tax was
offset by the reversal of valuation allowances previously placed against deferred tax assets allocated to
discontinued operations during 2002. Income tax expense recorded in discontinued operations for 2002 was
$4.0 million, and was principally attributable to the valuation allowance placed against Golden Eagle Leasing’s
deferred tax assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations primarily through cash generated from operations and
occasionally from borrowings under a line of credit and/or other debt facilities. During 2004 our primary
source of cash was cash generated by our operations as well as cash received from the issuance of employee
stock options and warrants. We had no borrowings under our revolving line of credit during 2004,

Cash flows from continuing operations

Cash provided by operating activities is net income (loss) adjusted for non-cash items and changes in
operating assets and liabilities. Cash provided by operating activities declined from $23.5 million for 2003 to
$14.1 million for 2004. The decline is principally attributable to changes in our operating assets and liabilities
partially offset by increased cash basis income. Cash basis income consists of net income (loss) adjusted for
the add-back of all non-cash charges. Changes in our operating assets and liabilities consist of the following
(dollars in thousands).

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 Change
Accounts receivable . ... ... $ (8,059) $(2,213) §$ (5,846)
Net investment in sales-type leases ....................... 2,554 (6,446) 9,000
Inventories ... ... i e (11,170) 1,243 (12,413)
Income tax receivable. .......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... — 9,118 (9,118)
Accounts payable ........ . . .. .. 4,712 1,587 3,125
Other .. 3,064 2,612 452
Changes in operating assets and liabilities .................. $ (8,899) $ 5901  $(14,800)

Most notably, cash flows from operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 was impacted by the
receipt of a $9.1 million income tax refund related to a U.S. net operating loss carryback claim. We received
no similar cash refund during 2004.

Changes in accounts receivable, inventories, and accounts payable are directly related to our 2004 fourth
quarter revenues in which we experienced a 25.7% increase when compared to the same quarter a year ago.
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The increase in inventories is principally due to the procurement of raw materials needed to manufacture our
new 32-bit products that we began shipping in the third and fourth quarters of 2004. The new products
required components that had significant lead times and, given our high fourth quarter sales, required us to
purchase quantities that would be sufficient to meet our forecasted demands. The increase in accounts payable
is directly related to outstanding balances owed to vendors from which we procured raw materials. The
increase in accounts receivable relates to shipments to customers in late November and December 2004 for
which we had not received payment. Payment terms for most of our customers are generally between 30 and
60 days.

Our net investment in sales-type leases favorably impacted cash flows from operations during 2004. The
decline in the portfolio is the result of an increase in resources resulting in improved collections during the year
and a decline in the lease base attributable to leases maturing more rapidly than new leases were originated.

Cash flows from investing activities

Investing cash flows consist principally of capital expenditures and the investment of excess cash
generated by our operations and from the sale of our discontinued operations. Cash used in investing activities
was $64.0 million in 2004 compared to cash provided by investing activities of $9.2 million in 2003. The
change is primarily related to our investment of excess cash and cash equivalents in marketable securities.
During 2004, our net investment in marketable securities was $52.3 million compared to $17.4 million in 2003.
Additionally, we generated $32.5 million of cash proceeds from the sale of discontinued operations in 2003.
Cash used to purchase other assets during 2004 relates to cash paid under a loyalty agreement for future
business related to our UK leasing operation. Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment increased
$2.2 million from $4.3 million in 2003 to $6.5 million in 2004. During 2004 and 2003, capital expenditures
were principally for upgrades to computer software and hardware and equipment purchases. We intend to
spend approximately $7.0 million to $8.0 million over the next twelve months for capital expenditures related
to leasehold improvements and production equipment due to the expansion of our manufacturing facility in
China, and for upgrades of computer software and hardware.

Cash flows from financing activities

Financing cash flows consist principally of the issuance of common stock, repayment of long-term debt,
and cash received from notes receivable from two former stockholders. During 2004, cash provided by
financing activities increased $5.3 million principally due to proceeds from stock options and warrant exercises.
Additionally, during March 2004, we received $1.1 million in cash from two former principal stockholders to
repay notes that came due. Cash used to repay long-term debt declined $1.4 million from 2003 and is
attributable to our overall lower debt balances.

Projected liquidity and capital resources

At December 31, 2004, working capital and cash and cash equivalents were $159.8 million and
$23.4 million, respectively, compared to $155.0 million and $65.4 million at December 31, 2003, respectively.
Current marketable securities increased $52.6 million from $17.4 million at December 31, 2003 to
$70.0 million at December 31, 2004. We believe that these cash reserves and marketable securities combined
with our positive operating cash flow will be sufficient to fund our projected liquidity and capital resource
requirements through 2005. Additionally, we are actively pursuing opportunities to monetize our existing lease
portfolio which, if successful, would substantially increase our cash reserves. Should operating resulfs prove
unfavorable, we may need to use additional capital sources to meet our short-term liquidity and capital
resource requirements.

30



Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations at December 31, 2004, and the
effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years After 5 Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

Long-term debt............... $ 9,591 $ 1,100 $ 8,491 $ — $ —
Capital lease obligations .. ... .. 86 50 36 — —
Operating leases .............. 6,440 1,980 2,324 1,407 729
Covenant not to compete ...... 265 265 — — —
Minimum purchase

obligations(1) .............. 19,225 19,225 — — —
Other long-term liabilities . . . . .. 3,284 70 140 2,171 903

Total ..................... $38,891 $22,690 $10,991 $3,578 $1,632

(1) Minimum purchase obligations include all outstanding obligations to purchase goods or services at
December 31, 2004 including agreements that are cancelable without penalty and agreements which are
enforceable and legally binding. We estimate that approximately 17% or less of the outstanding purchase
obligations at December 31, 2004 are non-cancelable due to the customized nature of the order.

Private Placement of Common Stock

On March 22, 2002, we completed the issuance and sale of 7,870,000 shares of our common stock, par
value $0.001 per share (the Shares), at a price of $5.00 per Share. The Shares were sold in a private offering
transaction exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The
Shares were subsequently registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission effective May 2, 2002.

The net proceeds of the private offering amounted to $36.5 million and were used to repay two term loans
with principal balances of $15.3 million and $3.3 million, respectively, under our credit facility, $3.1 million in
outstanding loans from a director and principal stockholder and to reduce the outstanding borrowings under
our $25 million revolving credit facility. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate purposes.

In connection with the early retirement of the term loans, we recorded a loss on early extinguishment of
debt of $2.6 million during the first quarter of 2002. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Debt Amendments

Effective December 31, 2003, we amended our Senior Secured Credit Facility with Foothill Bank
(Foothill Senior Secured Credit Facility) to a fully cash secured arrangement in an effort to reduce costs and
to further match our current liquidity needs. Under the terms of the amended and restated agreement, we
were required to maintain a $25 million unrestricted cash balance and were limited on the amount of certain
additional debt we could incur. Any borrowings under the revolving line of credit must be fully secured by an
equal amount of cash. All other financial covenants and most of the restrictions under the former agreement
were removed. The available credit on the revolving line of credit, which was previously reduced to $15 million
during March 2003, was further reduced to $10 million under the amended and restated Foothill Senior
Secured Credit Agreement. The interest rate was reduced from the greater of 8% or prime plus 2%, to the
greater of 4% or prime plus 1%. We had no advances on the revolving line of credit during 2004 and no
outstanding balance under the Foothill Senior Secured Credit Facility at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

On January 31, 2005, we entered into a Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Wells Fargo)
(the Credit Agreement), pursuant to which we will have access to a $10 million line of credit. The Credit
Agreement replaces our $10 million Foothill Senior Secured Facility. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement
will be fully collateralized by short-term securities held in our accounts with Wells Fargo and will bear interest
at a rate set forth in each promissory note issued at the time of the advance. The Credit Agreement contains
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customary default provisions and will expire in July 2006. At December 31, 2004, the Company had a
$0.4 million letter of credit outstanding with Wells Fargo Bank in support of a materials vendor.

Stock Repurchase

In June 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase, at management’s discretion, of up to
1,000,000 shares of our common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. In August
2003, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of an additional $10 million in common stock to
maximize shareholder value. During 2003, we purchased 60,000 shares of our common stock for $0.3 million.
The repurchased shares were recorded as treasury stock and resulted in a reduction in stockholder’s equity.
The timing and amount of any future repurchases will depend on market conditions and corporate
considerations. There were no repurchases during 2004.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2004, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in
Item 303(a)(4) (ii) of SEC Regulation S-K and FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, as revised.

Backlog

We include in backlog all revenue specified in signed contracts and purchase orders to the extent that we
contemplate recognition of the related revenue within one year. There can be no assurance that the contracts
included in backlog will actually generate the specified revenues or that the actual revenues will be generated
within the one-year period. As of December 31, 2004, our backlog was $35.4 million, compared to
$57.0 million at December 31, 2003. The decrease in backlog is principally related to the fulfillment of orders
for major customers within the United States that are subject to a customer approved delivery schedule.

In recent years, customers have shown a reluctance to enter into long-term firm commitments that we
would include in backlog. Our backlog is predominately related to contracts with North American customers
who comprise 67% and 80%, of the total backlog at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We have seen a
change in order patterns, such that most sales contracts are now signed and fulfilled within the same quarter.
Accordingly, we do not believe that our current backlog is indicative of our near-term sales.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment, which will be effective
for public entities as of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005.
SFAS 123(Revised) replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123(Revised) requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, be recognized as compensation cost in the
financial statements based on their fair values. As such, reporting employee stock options under the intrinsic
value-based method prescribed by APB 25 will no longer be allowed. We have historically elected to use the
intrinsic value method and have not recognized expense for employee stock options granted. We plan to adopt
SFAS 123(Revised) on July I, 2005 on a prospective basis. Upon adoption, all future employee stock option
grants plus the balance of the non-vested grants awarded prior to July 1, 2005, will be expensed over the stock
option vesting period based on the fair value at the grant date of the option. Although we are still evaluating
certain requirements of SFAS 123(Revised), we intend to continue using the Black-Scholes option valuation
model for previously granted options. We estimate that the impact of adoption in 2005 will be an additional
expense of approximately $0.4 million after tax for employee stock options granted prior to December 31,
2004. We also have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) that provides a discount of 15% from the
market price and an option to purchase the shares each quarter at the lower of the stock price at the beginning
of the quarter or the end of the quarter. Under the provisions of SFAS 123 (Revised), the discount and option
provisions under the ESPP are considered compensatory. We believe the incremental compensation cost
required by SFAS 123(Revised) for the ESPP will not be material to our operating results.
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In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB 43,
Chapter 4. SFAS No. 151. The standard requires that abnormal amounts of idle capacity and spoilage costs
should be excluded from the cost of inventory and expensed when incurred. This standard also provides
guidance for the allocation of fixed production overhead costs. This standard is effective for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We will adopt this standard in fiscal 2006. We have
not yet determined the impact, if any, this Statement will have on our financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets, an amendment
of APB No. 29, Accounting for Non-monetary Transactions. SFAS 153 requires exchanges of productive
assets to be accounted for at fair value, rather than at carryover basis, unless (1) neither the asset received nor
the asset surrendered has a fair value that is determinable within reasonable limits or (2) the transactions lack
commercial substance. SFAS 153 is effective for non-monetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material effect on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

FASB Staff Position No. 109-2, Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Farnings
Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (FSP No. 109-2), provides guidance
under FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS No. 109), with respect to recording
the potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (Jobs Act) on
enterprises’ income tax expense and deferred tax liability. The Jobs Act was enacted on October 22, 2004.
FSP No. 109-2 states that an enterprise is allowed time beyond the financial reporting period of enactment to
evaluate the effect of the Jobs Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earnings for purposes
of applying FAS109. We do not plan to repatriate cash under the Jobs Act given our current net operating loss
position. Accordingly, we do not believe that FSP No. 109-2 will have a material impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2004, the FASB approved the consensus reached on the Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain
Investments (EITF No. 03-1). EITF 03-1’s objective is to provide guidance for identifying other-than-
temporarily impaired investments. EITF 03-1 also provides new disclosure requirements for investments that
are deemed to be impaired temporarily. In September 2004, the FASB issued FSP EITF 03-1-1 that delays
the effective date of the measurement and recognition guidance in EITF 03-1 until further notice. The
disclosure requirements of EITF 03-1 are effective with this annual report for 2004. Once the FASB reaches a
final decision on the measurement and recognition provisions, we will evaluate the impact of the accounting
provisions of EITF 03-1.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At December 31, 2004, our cash equivalent investments are primarily in money market accounts and
certificates of deposit and are reflected as cash equivalents because all maturities are within 90 days from date
of purchase. Our interest rate risk with respect to existing investments is limited due to the short-term
duration of these arrangements and the yields earned which approximate current interest rates.

Our investment portfolio, consisting of fixed income securities, was $70.0 million as of December 31,
2004. These securities, like all fixed income instruments, are subject to interest rate risk and will decline in
value if market interest rates increase. If market rates were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10%
from the levels of December 31, 2004, the decline in the fair value of our investment portfolio would not be
material given that our investments typically have interest rate reset features that regularly adjust to current
market rates. Additionally, we have the ability to hold our fixed income investments until maturity and,
therefore, we would not expect to recognize any material adverse impact in income or cash flows.

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates in connection with our foreign operations and markets. Nevertheless, the fair value of our
investment portfolio or related income would not be significantly impacted by either a 100 basis point increase
or decrease in interest rates, due primarily to the short-term nature of the major portion of our investment
portfolio.
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A substantial portion of our revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, we do at
times enter into these transactions in other currencies, such as the Hong Kong dollar, Australian dollar,
Brazilian real, British pound and other Asian and European currencies. As a policy, we hedge the translation
of our net investment in foreign subsidiaries in an attempt to neutralize the effect of translation gains or losses
in the statement of operations. Financial hedging instruments are limited by our policy to foreign-currency
forward or option contracts and foreign-currency debt. We enter into forward or option contracts with our bank
or other financial institutions to accomplish our hedging strategy. At December 31, 2004, we had foreign
currency forward contracts outstanding in the amount of $31.1 million, denominated principally in the
Brazilian real and British pound. Gains and losses on these contracts principally consist of mark-to-market
adjustments which are recorded in earnings as foreign currency gains or losses.

We do not purchase or hold any such derivative financial instruments for the purpose of speculation or
arbitrage. See “Risk Factors — International operations pose additional challenges and risks that if not
managed could adversely affect our financial results” elsewhere in this Report.

At present, we have $8.8 million in debt obligations and there are no borrowings under our line of credit
facility at December 31, 2004. As such, our interest rate risk is limited with respect to existing debt.

During the normal course of business we are routinely subjected to a variety of market risks, examples of
which include, but are not limited to, interest rate movements and foreign currency fluctuations, as we discuss
in this Item 7A, and collectibility of accounts receivable. We continuously assess these risks and have
established policies and procedures to protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential
exposures. Although we do not anticipate any material losses in these risk areas, no assurance can be made
that material losses will not be incurred in these areas in the future.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation S-X are included in Part IV,
Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
FEvaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act) as of
December 31, 2004. Based on this evaluation, and due to the material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting (as described below in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting), our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of December 31, 2004,
our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act is recorded
accurately, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of manage-
ment, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on the framework
established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) entitled
Internal Control — Integrated Framework.
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Based on this evaluation and the material weaknesses described below, our management concluded that,
as of December 31, 2004, our internal control over financial reporting is not effective.

The first 'material weakness was identified as a result of insufficient controls over the contract
administration and accounting for certain leases that were incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather
than operating leases. As a result of this material weakness in internal control, management concluded that
our previously reported quarterly revenues and operating profits had been overstated and that previously issued
financial statements for each of the first three quarters of 2004 should be restated.

The second material weakness was identified as a result of the year-end financial statement close
procedures whereby we and our independent registered public accounting firm identified a number of
adjustments. Wie have concluded that controls related to our analysis, evaluation, and review of the Company’s
2004 financial information gave rise to these adjustments and resulted in a material weakness. The specific
control deficiencies consisted of:

+ an inappropriate level of review of certain significant financial statement accounts requiring a higher
degree of judgment and estimates;

« insufficient analysis, documentation, review, and oversight of the financial statements of certain foreign
subsidiaries during consolidation; and ‘

+ insufficient staffing of the accounting and financial reporting function.

In aggregate, these control deficiencies result in a more than remote likelihood that a material
misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated financial statements could occur and not be prevented or
detected in a timely manner. The foregoing material weakness resulted in adjustments to certain accounts in
the Company’s 2004 financial statements, including net investment in sales-type leases, fixed assets, other
current and long-term assets, accrued liabilities, revenues, cost of sales and other operating expenses.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP (E&Y), an independent registered public accounting
firm, who also audited our consolidated financial statements. E&Y’s attestation report on management’s
assessment of our internal control over financial reporting is contained below.

Remediation Plan

We are implementing remedial measures in response to the material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies identified through our internal controls evaluation. These remedial measures include additional
personnel, organizational changes to improve supervision, and increased training for finance and accounting
personnel. We are in the process of determining when we will be able to fully remediate and presently
anticipate that we will report in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of 2005 that a material
weakness in internal control over financial reporting continues to exist.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Except as noted above, there was no significant change in our internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9C. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Hypercom Corporation did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because of the effect of: (i) the Company’s
insufficient controls over the contract administration and accounting for certain leases that were incorrectly
accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than operating leases; and (ii) the insufficient controls surrounding
management’s analysis, evaluation and review of financial information at December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza-
tions of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Hypercom Corporation’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management’s
assessment as of December 31, 2004: (i) The Company had insufficient controls over the contract
administration and accounting for certain leases that were incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather
than operating leases. As a result of this material weakness in internal control, Hypercom Corporation
concluded the Company’s previously reported quarterly revenues and operating profits had been overstated
and that previously issued financial statements for each of the first three quarters of 2004 should be restated;
and (ii) the Company had insufficient controls related to management’s analysis, evaluation and review of the
Company’s 2004 financial information. The control deficiencies consisted of an inappropriate level of review of
certain financial statement accounts requiring a higher degree of judgment and estimates; insufficient analysis,
documentation, review and oversight of the financial statements of certain foreign subsidiaries during
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consolidation; and insufficient staffing of the accounting and financial reporting function. This material
weakness resulted in adjustments to certain accounts in the Company’s 2004 financial statements, including
net investment in sales-type leases, fixed assets, other current and long-term assets, accrued liabilities,
revenues, costs of sales and other operating expenses that were identified from the audit process. These
material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the 2004 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 11,
2005 on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Hypercom Corporation did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO control criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Hypercom Corporation has not maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO control
criteria.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 11, 2005

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information set forth in our 2005 Proxy Statement under the caption “Certain Transactions and
Relationships™ is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information set forth in our 2005 Proxy Statement under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and
Services” is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
a. The following documents are filed as part of this Report:
(1) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Emnst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and
2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule I1 Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(All other financial statement schedules have been omitted since they are not required, not
applicable, or the information is otherwise included in the financial statements)

b. We filed the following Form 8-K Reports during the fourth quarter of 2004:

1) Form 8-K dated October 7, 2004, announcing certain expected financial results for the quarter
ended September 30, 2004.

2) Form 8-K dated October 29, 2004, announcing our results of operations for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004.
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3) Form 8-K dated November 2, 2004, announcing the election of Phillip J. Riese to our Board of
Directors.

4) Form 8-K dated December 20, 2004, announcing certain expected financial results for the
quarter and year ended December 31, 2004.

¢. The Exhibit Index and required Exhibits are included following the Financial Statement Schedule.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

HYPERCOM CORPORATION

By /s/  C.S. ALEXANDER

Christopher S. Alexander
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 18, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 16, 2005.
Signature

Title
(1) Principal Executive, Financial and
Accounting Officers

/s/  C.S. ALEXANDER

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
Christopher S. Alexander and President

/s/  JoHN W. SMOLAK

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
John W. Smolak and Administrative Officer

(2) Directors

*

Director
Daniel D. Diethelm
* Director
William Keiper
* Director
Phillip J. Riese
* Director
Norman Stout

Christopher S. Alexander, by signing his name hereto, does sign and execute this Annual Report on
Form 10-K on behalf of such of the above named directors of the registrant on this 18th day of March, 2005,
pursuant to the power of attorney executed by each of such directors filed as Exhibit 24.1 to this Report.
*By: /s/ C.S. ALEXANDER
Attorney-in-Fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hypercom Corporation and subsidiar-
ies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Our audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a) (2). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
. Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hypercom Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Hypercom Corporation and subsidiaries internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
repert dated March 11, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and an adverse
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ ErNsST & Young LLP

Phoenix, Arizona .
March 11, 2005
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2004

2003

{Amounts in thousands,
except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ...... . ... ... .. .. . . i, $ 23445 $ 65415
Marketable SeCUItIes . . ... . o 69,962 17,400
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,390 and $993
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.............. ..., 59,776 55,252
Current portion of net investment in sales-type leases ....................... 9,441 8,783
InVentories .. ..o e 44,455 42,262
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ................veiiinrerinenn.. 12,955 15,071
Long-lived assets held forsale . ....... ... ... — 852
Total CUITENT ASSEES . . i vt ittt et e e e e e e e e 220,034 205,035
Property, plant and equipment, net . ....... ... .. e 29,920 28,217
Net investment in sales-type 1€ases . . ...ttt i 17,668 20,236
Intangible assets, net ........ F SR 4,475 3,731
Other long-term @SSEIS . . ...ttt ittt e et e 5,163 8,651
Total ASSES . . o\ ot $277,260  $265,870
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . .. ... ... $ 27,817 $ 21,733
Accrued payroll and related expenses ......... ... ... .. 8,679 8,267
Accrued sales and other taxes . ........... . e 8,792 8,332
Accrued Habilities ... ... . 8,308 7,534
Deferred revVenue . .. .. ... e 2,768 1,373
Income taxes payable .. ... . ... . ... 3,411 1,690
Current portion of long-term debt . ...... ... .. .. ... .. 470 1,058
Total current Habilities ... ... .. . . e 60,245 49,987
Long-term debt . ... . .. . . . 8,359 8,799
Other non-current liabilities . ... ... 3,284 2,787
Total Habilities . . ... e 71,888 61,573
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 52,254,935 and
49,930,803 shares outstanding at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,
respectively . .......... i i O 52 S0
Additional paid-in capital ... ... ... 228,567 219,983
Receivables from stockholders ......... .. ... .. . . — (1,056)
Accumulated deficit. . ........ ... .. B (19,969)  (11,307)
Unearned deferred compensation ... ........c.ov oo, (505) (600)
Treasury stock, 290,211 shares (at COSt).......cooviir i, (2,773) (2,773)
Total stockholders’ eqUIty .. .. ..ottt 205,372 204,297
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............ . ... ... i ..., $277,260  $265,870

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenue:
Product and other ... ... ... ... . . . . .
SeIVICES . .

Total net revenue ... ... ... i

Costs of revenue:
Product and other ...... ... ... . .. . .. . . ...
SeIVICES . . o

Total costs of revenue .. ... .

Gross profit . ..o
Operating expenses:
Research and development .. ..........................
Selling, general and administrative .....................
Restructuring charges ............ ... ... i

Total operating eXpenses . .........vvuuieernneeen....

Income (loss) from continuing operations .................
Interest INCOME. . ... ... it
Interest €Xpense . ...ttt
Foreign currency loss. ... o o
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . ............. ... ..
Other income (€XPENSE) . ... v\ vrit e,

Income (loss) before income taxes, discontinued operations,
and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. . . .
Provision for income taxes .......... .. i i,

Income (loss) before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of changein accounting principle .................

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of related
tax expense of $3,950 for the year ended December 31,
2002 . o

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. ... ..
Netincome (loss) . ... i

Basic income (loss) per share:

Income (loss) before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle .................
Income (loss) from discontinued operations..............
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. ... ..

Basic income (loss) pershare .........................
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle .................

Income (loss) from discontinued operations..............
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ... ...

Diluted income (loss) per share .......................

Weighted average basic shares: ..........................

Year Ended December 31,

2004

2003

2002

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

228,109 $ 208,929 $ 223,658
27,046 22,585 21,307
255,155 231,514 244,965
131,033 118,676 134,893
20,721 16,808 18,716
11,305 — —
163,059 135,484 153,609
92,096 96,030 91,356
27,188 24,163 24,744
66,313 58,832 57,888
_ — 4,434
93,501 82,995 87,066
(1,405) 13,035 4,290
1,198 382 253
(1,412) (2,474) (4,207)
(3,223) (2,751) (6,062)
— — (2,618)

13 (113) 295
(4,829) 8,079 (8,049)
(3,833) (4,114) (16,453)
(8,662) 3,965 (24,502)
— 7,233 (14,816)
— — (21,766)
(8,662) $ 11,198 $ (61,084)
0.17) $ 008 §  (0.53)
— 0.15 (0.32)

_ _ (0.47)
0.17) $ 023 $ (132
0.17) $ 008 §  (0.53)
— 0.14 (0.32)
_ _ (0.47)
0.17) $ 022 § (132
51,251,975 49,145,980 46,141,894
51,251,975 50,350,849 46,141,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

C Stock Additional  Receivables  Accumulated Unearned Total
___Lommon 3tock  paid-In from (Deficit) Deferred Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Balance Capital Stockholders Earnings Compensation  Stock Equity

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

Balance as of December 31,

2000 ... 39,795,554 $40  $175.607 $(1,498) $ 38,579 § — $(2,502) $210,226
Issuance of common stock. . .. 8,218,796 8 38,380 — — — — 38,388
Decrease in stockhoiders’

receivable . ....... .. .. ..., — — — 442 — — — 442
Netloss ..........o..oo.. i — — (61,084) — — (61,084)

Balance as of December 31,

2002 .. 48,014,350 48 213,987 (1,056) (22,505) — (2,502) 187,972
Issuance of common stock. . .. 1,852,351 2 5,396 — — — — 5,398
Purchase of treasury stock .. .. (60,122) — — — — — (271) (271)
Issuance of stock under stock

award plan............... 124,224 — 600 — — (600) — —
Netincome ................ — = — — 11,198 — — 11,198

Balance as of December 31,

2003 ... 49,930,803 50 219,983 (1,056) (11,307) (600) (2,773) 204,297
Issuance of common stock. . .. 2,274,482 2 8,274 — — — — 8,276
Issuance of stock under stock .

award plan............... 60,000 — 360 — — (360) — —
Cancelation of stock under

stock award plan.......... (10,350) — (50) — — 50 — —
Recognition of deferred

compensation. ............ — — — — — 405 405
Decrease in stockholders’

receivable. ............... — — —_— 1,056 — — — 1,056
Netloss .., ..o, - = — — (8,662) — — (8,662)

Balance as of December 31,
2004 ... 52,254,935  $52  $228,567 § — $(19,969) $(505)  $(2,773) $205,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from continuing operations: .
Net income (loss) from continuing operations .................. $ (8,662 $§ 3965 § (46,268)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing
operations to cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization of deferred financing costs ..................... 529 869 1,165
Depreciation/amortization ... ........ .. ... 9,244 8,883 10,528
Bad debtexpense ... .. .. .. 1,915 1,972 538
Provision for losses on sales-type leases ...................... 203 705 691
Write-down of excess and obsolete inventory .......... ... .. - 8,320 4,668 5,957
Foreign cutrency (gains) losses. .. ....... ... oo, (1,568) (3,423) 5,225
Write-off of deferred contract costs ......................... 11,305 — —
Non-cash stock compensation . ......... ... ... ... ... ...... 405 — —
Non-cash write-off of marketing rights intangible asset . ........ 698 — —
Deferred income taxes . ...t — —_ 22,356
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........... — - 21,766
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . ........ ... ... .. .. ..... — — 2,618
Non-cash restructuring charges. ... ... ... ..o i i — — 3,572
Other non-cash ... .. .. . . . 594 — 485
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net ........ ... ... . (8,899) 5,901 (15,980)
Net cash provided by operating activities. .................. 14,084 23,540 12,653

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of discontinued operations, net of purchase

price adjustments .. ....... ... ‘ — 32,512 —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ..................... (6,549) (4,319) (6,017)
Acquisition of otherassets . ...... . ... . .. i (2,173) (38) (2,436)
Software development costs capitalized ........................ (2,953) (1,552) (368)
Purchase of marketable securities . ................ . ... ... ..... (90,239)  (76,696) —
Proceeds from the sale or maturity of marketable securities . ... ... 37,900 59,323 —
Payments recetved on notes recetvable . . ... ... L — — 349
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities .......... (64,014) 9,230 (8,472)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on revolving line of credit ......................... — — 153,864
Repayments on revolving line of credit ................. ... ... — — {160,754)
Repayment of bank notes payable and other debt instruments . . . .. (995) (2,415) (23,797)
Advances from/(to) discontinued operations ................... — 294 (2,872)
Repayment of advances to stockholders ........................ 1,056 — 321
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ............. ... . ..., 8,276 5,398 37,555
Purchase of treasury stock . ......... . i — (271) —
Net cash provided by financing activities................... 8,337 3,006 4,317
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ..................... .... 407 728 (504)
Net (decrease) increase in cash flow from continuing operations. . . .. (41,186) 36,504 7,994
Net (decrease) increase in cash flow from discontinued operations. . . (784) 5,842 1,673
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ..................... 65,415 23,069 13,402
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ................ ... ....... § 23445 § 65415 $ 23,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004

1. Description of Business

Hypercom Corporation (Hypercom) is a single-source global provider of end-to-end electronic payment
solutions, including card payment terminals, peripherals, network products, software and e-commerce
payment solutions that add value at the point-of-sale (POS) for consumers, merchants and acquirers.

The U.S. operations, headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona, primarily consist of product development,
manufacturing, sales and marketing, distribution and customer service. The European operations consist of
product distribution through the Company’s sales and support offices located in the United Kingdom, Latvia,
Russia, Sweden, and Hungary. Latin American operations engage primarily in product distribution through
Hypercom’s subsidiaries in Miami, Brazil, Mexico, and Chile. Additionally third party manufacturing
operations exist in Brazil, Sweden and the U.S. Hypercom’s primary manufacturing is performed in China and
is coordinated by the Hong Kong office. The Asia/Pacific operations are also engaged in product development
and product distribution through the Hypercom’s subsidiaries or business units in Singapore, Hong Kong and
Australia.

During 2003, Hypercom disposed of Golden Eagle Leasing, which comprised its entire direct-finance
leasing segment (Notes 5 and 10).

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are comprised of the accounts of Hypercom and all subsidiaries in
which a controlling interest is held (collectively the “Company”). The Company does not have any
subsidiaries in which it does not own 100% of the outstanding stock. All significant inter-company balances
and transactions have been eliminated.

Reclassification and Restatement

Certain amounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company determined that certain leases originated during the first
three quarters of 2004 were incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than operating leases. This
accounting error, which relates to approximately 3,200 leases, resulted in an overstatement of net revenue and
net operating profit for the first three quarters of 2004. Accordingly, the first three quarters have been restated
to properly account for the leases as operating leases (Note 19).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all investment instruments, including money market accounts and certificates of
deposits, with a remaining maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2004

Marketable Securities

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments in tradable debt and equity
securities at the time of purchase. Securities for which the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold
to maturity are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value, with the unrealized holding gains
and losses, net of tax, reported in a separate component of stockholders’ equity, if material. Cost is determined
based on specific identification. Gains and losses on securities sold are determined based on the specific
identification method and are included in other income. Securities classified as available for sale include both
securities due within one year and securities with maturity dates beyond one year. Marketable securities
classified as available for sale are included in current assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company values financial instruments as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments. The fair value of
marketable securities and long-term marketable securities is determined based on quoted market prices, which
approximate fair value. The fair value of sales-type leases and long-term obligations is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows required under the terms of each respective lease or debt agreement by
current market rates for the same or similar issues of leases or debt with similar remaining maturities. The fair
value of financial hedge instruments are based on quotes from brokers using market prices for those or similar
Instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company does not acquire, hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks that arise from
the Company’s core business activities.

Derivative financial instruments used to manage foreign exchange risk are designated as hedging
instruments for hedges of foreign currency exposure of our net investment in foreign operations. The primary
objective of our hedging strategy is to protect our net investments in foreign subsidiaries and certain accounts
receivable that are exposed to volatility in foreign currency exchange rates. Financial hedging instruments
used in this strategy are limited by Company policy to foreign currency forward or option contracts and foreign
currency debt. Changes in the fair value of foreign-currency forward contracts are reported as foreign currency
gains or losses in the statement of operations. During 2004 and 2003, the Company had forward contracts in
place to hedge its foreign currency denominated net monetary assets in various foreign countries, including
Brazil, the United Kingdom, Chile, Australia and Sweden. The U.S. dollar amount of the contracts at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $31.1 million and $34.4 million, respectively, and the total
payable recorded under the contracts was approximately $1.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively, and is
reflected in accrued liabilities.

The Company has one derivative financial instrument to manage interest rate risk in the form of an
interest rate swap. The fair value of this instrument is not material to the Company’s financial position.

Accounts Receivable

Payment terms for product and service trade receivables generally range from 30 to 60 days depending on
the circumstances of each order or service contract. Payment on trade receivables from long-term contracts is
generally received within four months of the milestone approval date. Any payments not received within the
agreed upon due date are considered past due accounts.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
' December 31, 2004

An allowance for doubtful accounts is established for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. Such allowance is computed based upon a specific customer account
review of larger customers and balances in excess of 90 days old. Our assessment of our customers’ ability to
pay generally includes direct contact with the customer, investigation into our customers’ financial status, as
well as consideration of our customers’ payment history with us. If the financial condition of our customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required. If we determine, based on our assessment, that it is more likely than not that our customers will
be unable to pay, we will charge off the account receivables.

Sales-Type Leases

Certain sales of product are made under a capital lease arrangement, recorded as a sales-type lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, as amended. Lease contract receivables represent the
total lease payments to be received reduced by lease payments already collected. Sales-type lease revenues
consists of the initial sale of the product shipped and the interest and maintenance elements of the lease
payments as they are earned. An allowance for estimated uncollectible sales-type lease receivables at an
amount sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our sales-type lease portfolio is recorded.
The allowance is determined principally on the basis of historical loss experience and management’s
assessment of the credit quality of the sales-type lease customer base. If loss rates increase or customer credit
conditions deteriorate, the allowance for uncollectible sales-type leases may need to be increased. Unearned
income, including an interest and maintenance element, is the amount by which the original sum of the lease
contract receivable exceeds the fair value of the equipment sold. The interest element is amortized to lease
income over the lease in a manner that produces a constant rate of return. The maintenance element is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Recognition of the interest and maintenance income did
not exceed 10% of net revenues in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

In addition, as part of the initial recording of our sales-type leases, the estimated unguaranteed residual
value of the equipment is recorded. The residual value is based on industry standards and the Company’s
actual experience. If market conditions change negatively, it could have an adverse impact on the estimated
residual value amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, adjusted for
absorption of manufacturing variances, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Reserves
for estimated excess and/or obsolete inventory are recorded on a product or part level basis based upon future
demand and historical usage and establish a new cost basis for the respective item.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided on straight-
line and accelerated methods over the following useful lives:

Building .. ..o 25-50 years

Computer equipment and software .. ......... .. i 3-5 years

Machinery and equipment . . ... e 2-10 years

Equipment leased (0 CUSTOMETS. . ..ottt et e e e 1-5 years

Furniture and fixtures. .. ..., .. . 3-10 years
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Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the lease or the life of the asset, whichever is
shorter.

Goodwill and Intangibles

In September 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141, Business
Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Iniangible Assets, effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives
are no longer amortized, but are subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the statements. Other
intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. The Company adopted the standards
effective January 1, 2002. In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company ceased amortizing goodwill totaling
$21.8 million as of that date (Note 8).

The Company’s intangible assets consist of capitalized software and unpatented technology. Except for
capitalized software, which is discussed below, the Company’s intangible assets are amortized on a straight-
line basis over their useful life over periods ranging from 3 to 5 years.

SFAS No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed,
requires capitalization of certain software development costs subsequent to the establishment of technological
feasibility. Accordingly, certain development costs incurred between the establishment of technological
feasibility and when the product is available for general release to customers have been capitalized. The
amounts capitalized in the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, were approximately $3.0 million,
$1.6 million, and $0.4 million, respectively. Once the product is available for general use, the Company
amortizes capitalized software development costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the product
to which the costs relate.

The Company assesses the recoverability of intangible assets based on certain assumptions regarding
estimated future cash flows. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, the Company
may be required to record impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets used in operations for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment losses would be
recorded when the undiscounted cash flows to be generated by that asset are less than the carrying amounts of
the asset (Note 10).

Treasury Stock

In June 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase, at management’s discretion, of up to
1,000,000 shares of the Company’s stock. Shares repurchased under this authorization were used to offset
dilution caused by the Employees Stock Purchase Plan and Stock Option Plan. In addition, during August
2003, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of an additional $10 million in common
stock to maximize shareholder value. The Company’s repurchases of shares of common stock are recorded as
treasury stock and result in a reduction of stockholders’ equity. When treasury shares are issued, the Company
uses a first-in, first-out method and any excess of repurchase costs over the reissue price is treated as a
reduction of paid in capital. Any excess of reissue price over repurchase cost is treated as an increase to paid-in
capital.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue pursuant to Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 and No. 104, Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all four of the following criteria
are met: (i) persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery of the products and/or services has
occurred; (iii) the selling price is both fixed and determinable, and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company generally recognizes product revenue, including sales to distributors and sales under sales-
type leases, upon shipment of product. The Company generally recognizes services revenue when services
have been provided and collection of invoiced amounts is reasonably assured. Amounts received in advance of
services being rendered are recorded as deferred revenue. Revenues from long-term contracts that require
substantial performance of customized software and hardware over an extended period are recorded based
upon the attainment of scheduled performance milestones under the percentage-of-completion method.
Operating lease revenue is recognized monthly over the lease term. The cost of units leased under operating
leases are included in the balance sheet under “Property, plant and equipment.” The Company accrues for
warranty costs, sales returns and other allowances at the time of shipment.

Contract Accounting

The Company recognizes revenues and an estimated gross profit upon the attainment of scheduled
performance milestones under the percentage-of-completion method. The Company follows this method since
contracts contain well-defined performance milestones and the Company can make reasonably dependable
estimates of the costs applicable to various stages of the contract. During 2004, the final maintenance phase of
our only long-term contract expired. We recorded an $11.3 million charge in 2004 to write-off all deferred
contract costs previously recorded on this contract (Note 11).

Revenues subject to contract accounting have been less than 10% of total revenues for each of the fiscal
years 2002, 2003 and 2004.
Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and included in costs of revenue.

Product Warranty

The Company generally sells products with -a limited warranty of product quality and a limited
indemnification of customers against intellectual property infringement claims related to the Company’s
products. The accrual and the related expense for known issues were not significant as of and for the fiscal
years presented. Due to product testing, the short time between product shipment and the detection and
correction of product failures, and a low historical rate of payments on indemnification claims, the accrual
based on historical activity and the related expense were not significant as of and for the fiscal years presented.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled approximately $0.4 million, $0.4 million and
$0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, (SFAS 123) defines a fair value based
method of accounting for employee stock options or similar equity instruments. However, it also allows an
entity to continue to account for these plans according to Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
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Accounting for Stock issued to Employees (APB 25) and related intc.rpretations, provided pro forma
disclosures of net income are made as if the fair value based method of accounting, defined by SFAS 123, had
been applied.

The Company has elected to continue to measure compensation expense related to employee stock
purchase options using APB 25 and related interpretations, and as a result, no compensation expense is
recognized for stock options granted at 100% of the market value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant.
The following table represents the effect on net income (loss) and income (loss) per share if the Company
had applied the fair value method and recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock based employee
compensation (amounts in thousands, except per share data and weighted average shares):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net income (loss), as reported .................. $ (8,662 § 11,198 § (61,084)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

included in reported net income (loss) .......... 405 — —
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value methods for

all o (2,407) (3,969) (8,539)
Pro forma net income (loss) .................... $  (10,664) § 7,229 §  (69,623)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic, asreported ... ... .. $ (0.17) $ 023 § (1.32)
Basic, proforma............. . ... oo L $ (021) $ 015 § (1.51)
Diluted, asreported . .. ... ... ... ... $ 0.17) $ 022 $ (1.32)
Diluted, pro forma . ............. ... ... ... ... $ (0.21) $ 0.14 § (1.51)
Weighted average shares used in pro forma

computation:
Basic ... 51,251,975 49,145,980 46,141,894
Diluted ...... . ... 51,251,975 50,350,849 46,141,894

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation
method with the following assumptions:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted average risk free interest rate. ... ... .. oo i i 33% 27% 3.8%
Expected life of the options (inyears) .............. .. ... .o iin.. 5 5 5
Expected stock price volatility. ....... ... oo i 84% 87% 87%

Expected dividend yield . ... ... .. . — — —

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Because
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its
employee stock options. The weighted average fair value of options granted in the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 was $5.16, $2.05, and $4.46, respectively.
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As required, the pro forma disclosures above include options granted since January 1, 1995. For purposes
of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of stock options is amortized to expense primarily over the
vesting period using the accelerated expense attribution method under FASB Interpretation No. 28,
Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option Award Plans. See Note 14 for
further discussion of the Company’s stock-based employee compensation.

Foreign Currency

All of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and divisions use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency.
Accordingly, foreign currency translation gains and losses from remeasurement are included in current
earnings. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local currency are remeasured at period end exchange
rates whereas non-monetary assets, including inventories and property, plant and equipment, are reflected at
historical rates. During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 the Company recorded net gains
(losses) on re-measurement of approximately $1.5 million, $4.4 million, and ($4.9) million, respectively. For
the same periods, the Company recorded net losses on transactions denominated in foreign currencies of
approximately $4.7 million, $7.2 million, and $1.2 million, respectively. These amounts are included in the
results of operations.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax laws (including rates) is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date. See Note 12 regarding a full valuation reserve against
deferred tax assets.

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its international
subsidiaries because earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested
indefinitely.

Operating Segments

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those used for the consolidated entity.
Performance is evaluated based on profit or loss from operations. Inter-segment sales and transfers are
accounted for based on defined transfer prices. As a result of the sale of Golden Eagle Leasing effective
October 1, 2003 (Note 10), which comprised the Company’s entire Direct-Finance Leasing segment, the
Company’s continuing operations consist solely of one segment: Point-of-Sale (POS)/Network Systems.
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Income (Loss) Per Shave

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income (loss) per share (in
thousands, except per share amounts and weighted average shares):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

NUMERATOR:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and

cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle ... $ (8,662) § 3,965  §  (24,502)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. .. ... .. — 7,233 (14,816)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — (21,766)
Net income (loss) ............ .. $ (8,662) $ 11,198  §  (61,084)
DENOMINATOR:
Denominator for basic income (loss) per share —

weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . 51,251,975 49,145,980 46,141,894
Effect of dilutive securities:
Common stock options and warrants .. ............ — 1,204,869 —
Denominator for diluted income (loss) per share ... 51,251,975 50,350,849 46,141,894
INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and

cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . ... $ (0.17) % 008 § {0.53)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. .. ..... — 0.15 (0.32)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — (0.47)
Basic income (loss) per share ................... $ (0.17) % 023 § (1.32)
Diluted:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations and

cumulative effect of change in accounting

Principle ... ... $ (0.17) % 008 § (0.53)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. ....... — 0.14 (0.32)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — (0.47)
Diluted income (loss) per share ................. $ 017) % 022 % (1.32)

Options and warrants that could potentially dilute income (loss) per share in the future that were not
included in the computation of diluted income (loss) per share because they were anti-dilutive amounted to
9,941,747, 5,876,417, and 12,423,062, for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment, which will be effective
for public entities as of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005.
SFAS 123 (Revised) replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB
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Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123(Revised) requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, be recognized as compensation cost in the
financial statements based on their fair values. As such, reporting employee stock options under the intrinsic
value-based method prescribed by APB 25 will no longer be allowed. The Company has historically elected to
use the intrinsic value method and has not recognized expense for employee stock options granted. The
Company plans to adopt SFAS 123(Revised) on July 1, 2005 on a prospective basis. Upon adoption, all future
employee stock option grants plus the balance of the non-vested grants awarded prior to July 1, 2005, will be
expensed over the stock option vesting period based on the fair value at the date the options are granted.
Although the Company is still evaluating certain requirements of SFAS 123 (Revised), the Company intends
to continue using the Black-Scholes option valuation model for previously granted options. The Company
estimates that the impact of adoption in 2005 will be an additional expense of approximately $0.4 million after
tax for employee stock options granted prior to December 31, 2004. The Company also has an Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) that provides a discount of 15% from the market price and an option to purchase
the shares each quarter at the lower of the stock price at the beginning of the quarter or the end of the quarter.
Under the provisions of SFAS 123(Revised), the discount and option provisions under the ESPP are
considered compensatory. The Company believes the incremental compensation cost required by
SFAS 123(Revised) for the ESPP will not be material to its operating results.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB 43,
Chapter 4. SFAS No. 151. The standard requires that abnormal amounts of idle capacity and spoilage costs
should be excluded from the cost of inventory and expensed when incurred. This standard also provides
guidance for the allocation of fixed production overhead costs. This standard is effective for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company will adopt this standard in fiscal
2006. The Company has not yet determined the impact, if any, this Statement will have on its financial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets, an amendment
of APB No. 29, Accounting for Non-monetary Transactions. SFAS 153 requires exchanges of productive
assets to be accounted for at fair value, rather than at carryover basis, unless (1) neither the asset received nor
the asset surrendered has a fair value that is determinable within reasonable limits or (2) the transactions lack
commercial substance. SFAS 153 is effective for non-monetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard will have a material
effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. '

FASB Staff Position No. 109-2, Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings
Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (FSP No. 109-2), provides guidance
under FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes {(SFAS No. 109), with respect to recording
the potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (Jobs Act) on
enterprises’ income tax expense and deferred tax liability. The Jobs Act was enacted on October 22, 2004.
FSP No. 109-2 states that an enterprise is allowed time beyond the financial reporting period of enactment to
evaluate the effect of the Jobs Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earnings for purposes
of applying FAS109. The Company does not plan to repatriate cash under the Jobs Act given the Company’s
current net operating loss position. Accordingly, the Company does not believe that FSP No. 109-2 will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2004, the FASB approved the consensus reached on the Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain
Investments (EITF No. 03-1). EITF 03-1’s objective is to provide guidance for identifying other-than-
temporarily impaired investments. EITF 03-1 also provides new disclosure requirements for investments that
are deemed to be impaired temporarily. In September 2004, the FASB issued FSP EITF 03-1-1 that delays

53




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2004 :

the effective date of the measurement and recognition guidance in EITF 03-1 until further notice. The
disclosure requirements of EITF 03-1 are effective with this annual report for 2004. Once the FASB reaches a
final decision on the measurement and recognition provisions, the Company will evaluate the impact of the
accounting provisions of EITF 03-1.

3. Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks
Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, marketable securities, and long-term marketable securities.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities are maintained with major, high-
quality international banks and financial institutions. Generally, these securities are traded in a highly liquid
market, may be redeemed upon demand and bear minimal risk. Management regularly monitors the
composition and maturities of these investments and the Company has not experienced any material loss on its
investments. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the F.D.I.C limits. The Company believes that
no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

The Company’s accounts receivable result primarily from credit sales to a broad customer base, both
nationally and internationally, with a concentration generally existing among 5 to 10 customers. The
Company’s top five customers amounted to 27.0%,-24.6%, and 32.8% of the Company’s total revenues for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and approximately 20.7% and 22.0% of the
Company’s net accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Sales to the
Company’s largest customer totaled 10.2%, 9.3% and 12.1% percent of total revenues in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively,

The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers, requiring letters of credit from
certain foreign customers, and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts as necessary.

Inventories

Most components used in the Company’s systems are purchased from outside sources. Certain
components are purchased from single suppliers. The failure of any such supplier to meet its commitment on
schedule could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial
condition. If a sole-source supplier were to go out of business or otherwise become unable to meet its supply
commitments, the process of locating and qualifying alternate sources could require up to several months,
during which time the Company’s production could be delayed. Such delays could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.

The Company estimates inventory provisions for potentially excess and obsolete inventory on a part level
basis based on forecasted demand and historical usage. Actual demand may differ from such anticipated
demand and may have a material adverse effect on inventory valuation.

International Operations

The Company’s international business is an important contributor to the Company’s net revenue and
operating results. However, a substantial portion of the Company’s international sales are denominated in the
U.S. dollar, and an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies could make products
sold internationally less competitive. The operating expenses of the Company’s overseas offices are paid in
local currencies and are subject to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
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The Company conducts final assembly operations in China and relies on third party manufacturers in
Brazil, China and Sweden. Foreign manufacturing is subject to certain risks, including the imposition of tariffs
and import and export controls, together with changes in governmental policies. The occurrence of any of
these events could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial
condition.

The Company maintained significant accounts receivable balances in the Europe and Latin America
regions, comprising 45% and 57%, respectively, of the Company’s net accounts receivable balance at
December 31, 2004 and 2003. These balances are subject to the economic risks inherent to those regions.

4. Marketable Securities

The Company’s marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair market
value. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, amortized cost of the Company’s marketable securities equaled fair
market value. Accordingly, there were no unrealized gains and losses as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities amounted to $37.9 million and $39.3 million,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. There were no proceeds from the sale of
securities during 2002. Gross realized gains and losses were not material for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003.

The Company’s marketable securities consisted of the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003 (dollars
in thousands):

2004 2003
Municipal debt securities . ......... . $14,900 $ 9,900
U.S. government and agency debt securities ........ ... . ... ... ... .. 35,962 —
Preferred equity SECUTTtIES . . .. oottt e 19,100 7,500

$69,962  $17,400

At December 31, 2004, all of the Company’s municipal debt securities have maturity dates that exceed
five years and all of the Company’s U.S. government and agency debt securities mature within calendar 2005.

5. Leases
Direct Financing Leases

During 2003, the Company disposed of Golden Eagle Leasing, which comprised the Company’s entire
direct-finance leasing segment (Note 10). Accordingly, the Company had no direct financing leases at
December 31, 2003. All operating results and cash flows for Golden Eagle Leasing have been reclassified to
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Interest expense associated with the debt incurred to fund direct financing leases and provisions for credit
losses are all reflected in discontinued operations in the accompanying statements of operations. Interest
expense and provisions for credit losses included in the costs of revenue amounted to $0.9 million and
$4.2 million, and $2.4 million and $8.4 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.
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Sales-Type Leases

Net investment in sales-type leases consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Lease contracts receivable. .. ... $31,983 $ 35,030
Allowance for credit [0SS€s . ... . . (1,198) (1,694)
Estimated unguaranteed residual value ........ ... .. ... ... oL 6,039 6,381
Unearned revenue . ... ... . e (9,715)  (10,698)
Net investment in sales-type leases ............... P 27,109 29,019
Less: current portion ... ...t (9,441) (8,783)
Long-term POIrtiON . ... ...ttt e $17,668 § 20,236

Minimum rentals on the sales-type leases are contractually due as follows (dollars in thousands):
Years Ending December 31,

20005 L $14,763
2000 . 9,585
2007 5,753
2008 L 1,882

$31,983

Operating Leases

The Company leases equipment to customers under operating leases with terms generally under two
years. The leases contain provisions for mutual renewal options. Minimum future rental revenue contractually
due under these operating leases is $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

6. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following (dollars in thousands):
December 31,

2004 2003
Purchased Parts ... ... ...ttt $23,268  $17,990
WOrk In Progress . ..ot e e 5,918 4,581
Finished goods . ... ... i 15,269 19,691

$44,455 342,262
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following (dollars in thousands):
December 31,

2004 2003
Land and improvements .. ...... ... . i $ 4711 $ 4,691
Buildings . ... ... 14,883 14,064
Computer equipment and software .......... ... . ... ... 18,620 19,217
Machinery and equipment ........... i 20,571 18,630
Equipment leased to customers . ......... ...ttt 3,609 1,349
Furniture and fiXtures ......... ... ... 5,657 6,021
Leasehold improvements . . ...t i 2,942 2,999
ConstruCtion M PIOCESS . . v v ot vt e e et e ettt e 1,386 499

72,379 67,470
Less accumulated depreciation. . ...... .. ... i (42,459)  (39,253)

$ 29,920 S 28217

Depreciation expense from continuing operations was $7.2 million, $6.4 million, and $7.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Due to unfavorable real estate conditions the Company was unable to dispose of its remaining long-lived
asset held for sale, a sales and distribution building in Brazil, initially held for sale beginning September 30,
2002. At December 31, 2003 the carrying amount of the building was $0.9 million. In November 2004, the
Company decided to retain the building and utilize the space to perform subassembly work on its 32-bit
product line and to utilize the space in its terminal service business. Accordingly, the building has been
reclassified to Property, Plant and Equipment and adjusted for depreciation expense of approximately
$0.1 million that would had been recognized had the asset been continuously classified as held and used per
the provisions of SFAS 144,

8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

At January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 142 and evaluated its reporting units
for impairment of goodwill. The Company’s carrying amount of goodwill at January 1, 2002 was $21.8 million,
of which $20.3 million was attributed to Golden Eagle Leasing, which comprised all of the Direct-Finance
Leasing segment, with the remaining $1.5 million attributable to the POS/Network Systems segment. The
impairment test relative to Golden Eagle Leasing’s goodwill was performed by an independent third party
valuation firm using market multiple, comparable transaction and discounted net earnings methodologies, with
the remaining amount of goodwill evaluated internally using similar valuation methodologies. The results of
the impairment tests resulted in a full write-off of the carrying value of goodwill of $21.8 million. In
accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS 142, the write-off was reported as a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle. In conjunction with the write-off, the Company provided a full valuation
reserve against the deferred tax benefit attributed to the goodwill write-off, and accordingly did not report the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle net of tax.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following (dollars in thousands):
December 31,

2004 2003
Capitalized software. ........ .. ... . . . $11,050 §$ 8,456
“Unpatented technology . ... .. .. .. 2,783 2,783
OheT . o 29 1,396
13,862 12,635
Less accumulated amortization ...... ... ... ... ... o (9,387)  (8,904)

$ 4475 8§ 3,731

Other intangible assets represents marketing rights and patents. In December 2004, the Company
recorded a $0.7 million charge to write-off a marketing right that the Company determined had no future
value. In addition, during 2004 the Company capitalized $3.0 million in costs related to the development of
software for its 32-bit product line.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets used in continuing operations was $1.5 million,
$2.5 million, and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, which
consisted of amortization of capitalized software of $1.1 million, $1.2 million, and $1.8 million. The estimated
amortization expense for all intangibles for the next five years is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

20005 $1,620
2006 . . 1,620
200 e e 1,235
Thereafter o e =

$4,473
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9. Long-term Debt
Debt Instruments

Long-term debt consists of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2003

Floating Rate Option Note payable to Bank One, Arizona: payable in semi-annual
installments plus interest at a variable rate, due April 1, 2019; collateralized by
unconditional, irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit............................ $8,677 $ 9,003

Foothill Senior Secured Credit Facility, as Amended and Restated: consisting of a
$10 million fully cash secured revolving line of credit which bears interest at the
greater of 4% or prime plus 1%, terminated January 31,2005 .................... — —

Note payable to third party: collateralized by building in Brazil, payable in 51
installments including interest at 11.5% plus a variable inflation rate factor, matures

February 2005 ..o e 75 465
Lease payable to Banc One Leasing: collateralized by equipment, payable in 48
equal monthly installments including interest at 8.62%, matured June 2004 ........ — 236
Other capital [eases . . ...t 77 153
8,829 9,857
Current portion of long-term debt .. ... .. ... . . . (470)  (1,058)
Long-term debt ... ..o $8,359 $ 8,799

In connection with the Floating Rate Option Note, the related letter of credit is subject to renewal on
April 1, 2006. If the letter of credit is not renewed, the entire remaining principal balance will become due and
payable. The letter of credit is collateralized by land and buildings at the Company’s headquarters in Phoenix,
Arizona. The Company is required to make increasing monthly deposits of $18,490 up to $81,752 over the life
of the note into a sinking fund to provide periodic repayment of the notes. The Company entered into an
interest rate swap agreement to fix the effective interest rate at 7.895%. The interest rate swap agreement
expires April 1, 2006. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other
parties to the interest rate swap agreement. However, the Company does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counter-parties.

Effective December 31, 2003, the Company amended its Senior Secured Credit Facility (Foothill Senior
Secured Credit Facility) to a fully cash secured arrangement in an effort to reduce costs and to further match
the Company’s current liquidity needs. Under the terms of the amended and restated agreement, the
Company was required to maintain a $25 million unrestricted cash balance and was limited on the amount of
certain additional debt the Company can incur. Any borrowings under the revolving line of credit must be fully
secured by an equal amount of cash. All other financial covenants and most of the restrictions under the
former agreement were removed. The available credit on the revolving line of credit, which was previously
reduced to $15 million during March 2003, was further reduced to $10 million under the amended and
restated Foothill Senior Secured Credit Facility. The interest rate was reduced from the greater of 8% or prime
plus 2%, to the greater of 4% or prime plus 1%. The Company had no advances on the revolving line of credit
during 2004 and no outstanding balance under the Foothill Senior Secured Credit Facility at December 31,
2004 and 2003. The Company terminated the Foothill Senior Secured Credit Facility on January 31, 2005.

On January 31, 2005, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
(Wells Fargo) (the “Credit Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company will have access to a $10 million
line of credit. The Credit Agreement replaces the Company’s $10 million Foothill Senior Secured Credit
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Facility. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement will be fully collateralized by short-term securities held in
the Company’s accounts with Wells Fargo and will bear interest at a rate set forth in each promissory note
issued at the time of the advance. The Credit Agreement contains customary default provisions and will expire
in July 2006. At December 31, 2004, the Company had a $0.4 million letter of credit outstanding with Wells
Fargo Bank.

The aggregate principal payments due on long-term debt are as follows (dollars in thousands):
Years Ending December 31,

2005 .\ $ 470
2006 oo 8,343
2007 16

$8,829

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During March 2002, the Company completed the issuance and sale of 7,870,000 shares of its common
stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Shares”), at a price of $5.00 per Share. The Shares were sold in a
private offering transaction exempt from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. The Shares were subsequently registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission effective
May 2, 2002. The net proceeds of the private offering amounted to $36.5 million and were used to repay two
term loans with principal balances of $15.3 million and $3.3 million, respectively, $3.1 million in outstanding
loans from a former director and former principal stockholder and to reduce the outstanding borrowings under
the Company’s $25 million revolving credit facility. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate
purposes. In connection with the early retirement of the term loans, the Company recorded a loss on early
extinguishment of debt of $2.6 million during the first quarter of 2002.

10. Restructuring Charges and Discontinued Operations

During September 2002, the Company committed to a plan to improve profits. The plan entailed
downsizing certain operations and streamlining their product offerings, changing to a distributor sales model
versus a direct sales model in certain international locations and disposing of unprofitable operations around
the world. The profit improvement plan included both restructuring activities to be accounted and reported
under SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, as well as discontinued
operations to be accounted and reported under SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.

Restructuring Charges

The downsizing activities principally focused on the Company’s POS/Network Systems segment,
including the Company’s manufacturing operations in Brazil. Such activities entailed moving to a contract
manufacturer, reducing the number of personne! and holding for sale certain long-lived assets such as
buildings and production equipment. Inventories were also written down to support a more streamlined
preduct offering. In addition, the Company identified certain sales offices around the world to close in favor of
a more cost-effective distributor arrangement in those locations. Costs associated with closing these sales '
offices principally included employee severance, inventory write-downs and costs associated with exiting office
space and disposing of office fixed assets. The Company substantially completed all restructuring activities
relative to its profit improvement plan during 2002.
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The following table sets forth the amount incurred during the year ended December 31, 2002 (in
thousands):

2002 Incurred

Restructuring charges in Cost of Sales
Write down of inventories and related costs . ........ ... ... .. ... ... $2,033

Total restructuring charges in cost of sales ............c.cooiiiiiiiinenn.. $2,033

Restructuring charges

Write down of building to fair value.............. ... . ... $2,184
Write down of fixed assets to fairvalue . ........ ... ... ... ... .. oL 1,388
Write down of other assets to fair value............ . ... ... ... .. i, 233
One-time termination benefits . . ....... . ... . 482
Miscellaneous operating accruals ....... ... .. . . o 147
Total restructuring charges . ... ot e $4,434

There were no restructuring charges incurred in 2003 or 2004.

Discontinued Operations

In connection with the profit improvement plan, the Company identified and decided to hold for sale
certain under-performing operating units whose activities were not closely aligned with the Company’s core
business. The results of operations for these operating units held for sale have been classified as discontinued
operations and all periods prior to September 2002 have been reclassified to present these operating units as
discontinued operations. At the time the Company determined to hold these operations for sale, the Company
recorded an $8.0 million charge to adjust the carrying amounts of the assets to their estimated fair value less
an estimate of costs to sell. Assets written down consisted principally of accounts receivable, inventories,
intangible assets and fixed assets. In accordance with SFAS 144, the operating results of the discontinued
operating units, prior to sale, were classified in discontinued operations as incurred.

During 2002, the Company completed the disposition of two of the operating units initially held for sale in
September 2002. The sales did not result in material gains or losses.

During 2003, the Company completed the disposition of all remaining operating units identified and
initially held for sale in September 2002. In connection with the disposition of these operating units, the
Company recorded a loss on sale of $3.2 million during 2003 comprised of a $0.3 million cash infusion made
by the Company in accordance with the terms of the sale, non-cash inventory and fixed asset write-downs of
$1.4 million, one-time severance costs of $0.5 million, the write-off of $0.8 million in uncollectible accounts
receivable, and facility lease and other exit costs of $0.2 million.

- Consistent with the Company’s strategy of disposing of operating units not aligned with its core business,
the Company sold its direct financing lease subsidiary, Golden Eagle Leasing, effective October 1, 2003, and
recorded a $7.0 million gain net of severance and other exit costs. Gross proceeds from the sale amounted to
$30.0 million. As a result of the disposition, the net operating results of Golden Eagle Leasing have been
reported within discontinued operations for all periods presented. Net revenues and operating income (loss)
reported in discontinued operations for Golden Eagle Leasing for the two years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 were $16.8 million and.$5.6 million, and $25.7 million and $2.8 million, respectively. At December 31,
2003 and 2004, the Company had no remaining assets of discontinued operations held for sale.
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Net revenues of the operating units classified as discontinued operations for the two years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 were $22.6 million and $48.4 million, respectively. Pretax income (loss) of the
operating units classified as discontinued operations for the two years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was
$7.2 million, and ($10.9) million. The pretax income for the year ending December 31, 2003 includes a net
gain on disposition of discontinued operations of $3.8 million. The pretax loss for the year ending
December 31, 2002 includes $8.0 million in initial write-downs of assets to fair market value.

11. Contract Accounting

The Company has been involved in a long-term contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry requiring
substantial delivery of customized software and hardware. Revenue and a resulting margin under this contract
were recorded based on the achievement of contract milestones approved by the Brazilian Health Ministry in
accordance with Statement of Position 81-1, Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain
Production-Type Contracts. The margin for the entire contract was estimated to be 9%. Inherent in this
margin was an expectation of realizing all amounts owed under the terms of the original contract and
recovering claims for additional contract revenue, due to changes in the scope of the contract and additional
currency exchange variation adjustments. Scope changes involved expanding the overall design specifications
requiring additional hours and administration costs. The currency adjustments represented the inflation of cost
on imported equipment caused by currency movements. At the end of 2003, the Company formally presented
a claim to the Brazilian Health Ministry detailing the amount and nature of the scope changes and currency
variation impact.

The Company did not recognize revenues above the original contract amount, and contract costs
associated with the scope changes and currency adjustments amounting to $11.3 million at June 30, 2004 were
deferred in anticipation of recognizing contract revenue. Deferred contract costs were reported within other
current assets and .other long-term assets and treated as normal costs of contract performance.

During April 2004, the final maintenance phase of the contract expired and the Brazilian Health Ministry
informed the Company of their intent to extend the maintenance clement of the contract. However, no formal
agreement had been entered into regarding the extension of the maintenance element of the contract and no
official authoritative answer had been received regarding the pending claim. The Company believes that the
delay in payment and extension of the maintenance element of the contract related to an internal scandal
within the Brazilian Health Ministry, which in no way related to the Company or the Company’s pending
claim, but nevertheless, cast doubt and concern over the ability to recover, timely, the amounts owed under the
contract. Accordingly, due to the lack of timely acknowledgement and acceptance of the pending claim, the
expiration of the contract during April 2004 and the delay in the negotiation of the extension of the
maintenance element of the contract, the Company recorded a $12.9 million charge to operations during the
second quarter of 2004 for all remaining amounts recorded under the contract. The charge consisted of an
$11.3 million write-off of deferred contract costs, which was recorded in cost of revenues and presented
separately in the statement of operations, and a $1.6 million reserve against accounts receivable, which was
recorded in selling expense. Since the second quarter 2004, the Company has received $1.6 million from the
Brazilian Health Ministry, and, accordingly, reversed the $1.6 million accounts receivable reserve during the
second half of 2004. The Company continues to perform maintenance for the Brazilian Health Ministry and
all costs related to the maintenance incurred after June 30, 2004 were expensed as incurred.

The Company is actively pursuing discussions with the Brazilian Health Ministry regarding both the
collection of the contract costs as well as renewal of the maintenance element of the contract; however, there
is no certainty as to how much will ultimately be collected, whether revenue for work previously done will be
recorded or if the maintenance element of the contract will ultimately be extended.
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Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consists of the following (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Income (loss) before income taxes:
United States. .. ..ot $- 1,048  $(24,334) $(55,956)
Foreign . ..o o (5,877) 32,413 15,275

$(4,829) $§ 8,079 $(40,681)

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Current:
Federal . ... ... $ — & —  $(10,12%)
At . L 59 74 15
Foreign . ... e 3,774 4,040 4,420
3,833 4,114 (5,690)

Deferred:
Federal ... ... .. . — — 21,999
Al . o e e — — 3,143
FOTeIgN . - — 951
— — 26,093
Total tax EXPENSE ..ttt it $3,833  $4,114 $ 20,403

The Company’s effective income tax rate differs from the U.S. federal income tax rate as shown below:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate. .................. (35.0)% 35.0% (35.0)%
State income taxes (benefit), net of federal income tax effect ......... 1.0 0.8 —
Foreign taxes . . ..o o 119.0 (88.1) 13.2
Tax credits . ..ot (11.0) (4.3) —
Translation gain (108S) ..., (4.0) (16.1) —
Change in valuation allowance ........ . ... ... . ... i, (41.1y 121.2 73.7
UK 1088 TeCAPTUIE . o ot ottt e e e e et e 48.0 — —
OMNET oot I 2.1 L1 (L7
Effective tax rate. ... ... it [P 79.0% 49.6% 50.2%
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003

Deferred tax assets, current:

Inventory valuation and TeSETves . ............. ...t $ 2,552 % 2,144
Compensation accruals ......... . .. . . e 1,059 2,628
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........... .. ... ... .. .. . ... . ... .... 412 264
Valuation allowance . . ... .o i e (4,023) (5,036)
Deferred tax assets, CUTTENT . . ... .. v it e $ — 5 —
Deferred tax assets (liabilities), non-current:

Tax loss carry forwards . ....... .. .. ... . . $ 43,400 $ 45,188
Intangibles ... .. . e — 2,879
Property, plant and equipment ............... .. ... (274) (309)
Other . o 4,339 3,827
Valuation allowance . .. ....... .. ... i e (47,465)  (51,585)
Net deferred tax assets, NON-CUITENt .. .. ...ttt $ — 3 —

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company’s valuation allowance against its
deferred tax assets (decreased) increased by ($5.1) million. $10.0 million, and $39.7 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the balance in the Company’s valuation allowance was $51.5 million and
$56.6 million, respectively. The valuation allowance is subject to reversal in future years at such time that the
benefits are actually utilized or, the operating profits in the U.S. become sustainable at a level that meets the
recoverability criteria under SFAS 109,

In June 2004, the Company incorporated its UK branch, resulting in a recapture of prior losses of the
branch for U.S. Federal tax purposes. These losses are included in the fully reserved U.S. net operating loss.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had not provided deferred income tax benefits on
cumulative losses of certain individual international subsidiaries of $60.2 million and $38.4 million respec-
tively. If deferred income tax assets were recognized for these net operating losses, they would be
approximately $16.0 million and $8.9 million, respectively, and would be fully offset by a valuation allowance.
Upon distribution of earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company may be subject to both
U.S. income taxes and withholding taxes in its various international jurisdictions. As a result of certain
employment actions and capital investments undertaken by the Company, income from manufacturing
activities in certain countries is subject to reduced tax rates.

At December 31, 2004, the Company has U.S. Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $123 million. These Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire
beginning in 2020 through 2024 if not previously utilized.

At December 31, 2004, the Company has undistributed earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries. The
company currently intends to permanently reinvest these earnings in operations outside the U.S.

The Company does business in a number of different countries. Tax authorities may scrutinize the various
tax structures employed by the Company in these countries. We believe that we maintain adequate tax
reserves, including our valuation allowance, to offset the potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit in
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these countries. If such amounts ultimately prove to be unnecessary, the resulting reversal of such reserves
would result in tax benefits being recorded in the period the reserves are no longer deemed necessary. If such
amounts ultimately prove to be less than the ultimate assessment, a future charge to expense or reduction of
our valuation allowance would result. In addition, any potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit could
affect the individual items that comprise the company’s fully-reserved deferred tax asset balance.

13. Profit Sharing Plans

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (401 (k) Plan), which commenced in fiscal 1998, covering
all eligible full-time employees of the Company. Contributions to the 401(k) Plan are made by the
participants to their individual accounts through payroll withholding. Additionally, the 401(k) Plan provides
for the Company to make profit sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan in amounts at the discretion of
management. The employer contribution for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
approximately $0.3 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million, respectively.

14. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Options

During fiscal 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors (Board) approved the Hypercom Corporation
Long-Term Incentive Plan which was amended in 2001 (1997 Plan), to allocate a total of 6,000,000 shares of
common stock for issuance at the Company’s discretion. The 1997 Plan authorizes issuance of “incentive
stock options” (as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), non-qualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance share awards, dividend equivalent awards and other
stock-based awards. Stock options issued under the 1997 Plan become exercisable over a period determined by
the Board (generally over five years) and expire ten years after the date of grant.

In July 2000, the Company’s Board approved the Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Stock
Incentive, which was amended in 2002, Plan (2000 Plan) to allocate 7,000,000 shares of common stock for
issuance at the Company’s discretion. The 2000 Plan authorizes the issuance of non-qualified stock options
and restricted stock awards, the majority of which must be issued to employees of the Company who are not
officers or directors. Non-qualified stock options issued under the 2000 Plan become exercisable over a period
determined by the Board, and expire after a period determined by the Board.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average

Under Exercise Under Exercise Under Exercise
Option Price Option Price Option Price

Beginning balance outstanding 10,056,327  $6.26 10,782,473  $6.28 10,663,352  $6.32
Granted .................... 212,500 8.38 241,250 4.25 1,046,000 5.64
Exercised ................... (1,492,686) 3.44 (380,142) 1.91 (154,475) 3.88
Forfeited. ................... (165,850) 8.92 (587,254) 8.76 (772,404) 6.50
Ending balance outstanding .... 8,610,291 $6.75 10,056,327 $6.26 10,782,473  $6.28
Exercisable at end\of year ..... 7,065,279  $6.98 7,382,193  $6.57 6,502,702  $6.42
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The following table summarizes additional information about the Company’s stock options outstanding as
of December 31, 2004: '

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Average Shares Average
Under Remaining Exercise Under Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Option Contractual Life Price Option Price
$350. .. 2,500,686 6.14 $ 350 2039419 §$ 3.50
$ 352- 523 ... 890,200 7.13 4.36 517,900 4.45
$548- 625 ... ... 712,750 7.39 6.08 424,625 6.10
$640. . .. ... 1,516,375 2.29 6.40 1,516,375 6.40
$ 657- 9375 ... ... .. 843,750 5.67 8.86 706,250 9.13
$956-1000 ................ 713,600 5.46 9.5% 550,240 9.59
$1025-11.13 ... 789,710 4.29 10.41 692,210 10.41
$11.63-1488 ................ 643,220 5.38 13.81 618,260 13.81

8,610,291 7,065,279

Stock Warrants

During April 2004, the Company issued 742,257 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share,
upon the conversion of 742,257 Series C Warrants at an exercise price of $3.91 per share. Proceeds from the
conversion amounted to $2.9 million. During the second quarter of 2003, the Company issued 1,366,250 shares
of its common stock, par value $0.001 per share, upon the conversion of its Series A Warrants
(1,000,000 shares at an exercise price of $3.19 per share) and Series B Warrants (366,250 shares at an
exercise price of $3.16 per share). Proceeds from the conversions amounted to $4.3 million.

At December 31, 2004 the Company had outstanding 319,858 Series D Warrants, authorized by the
Board, to purchase 319,858 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $5.21 per share exercisable through
July 30, 2006.

Unearned Deferved Compensation

In February 2004, the Company granted 60,000 shares of restricted common stock to the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer under the 2000 Plan. The Company recorded deferred compensation of $0.4 million,
representing the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant and a weighted-average fair market value
of $6.00 per share. In December 2003, the Company granted 124,224 restricted shares of common stock to
certain employees under the 2000 Plan. The Company recorded deferred compensation of $0.6 million,
representing the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant at a weighted-average fair market value of
$4.83 per share. During 2004, the Company recorded a reduction in deferred compensation of $0.1 million due
to the cancellation of 10,350 awards issued to an employee who left the Company prior to vesting. The
deferred compensation is presented as a reduction of stockholders’ equity and is being amortized ratably over
the service period. The Company expects to record compensation expense related to these stock grants of
approximately $96,000 per quarter through December 31, 2005 and then $27,000 per quarter thereafter until
February 2007. Expense with respect to the grants could be reduced and/or reversed to the extent employees
receiving the grants leave the Company prior to vesting in the award.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On September 8, 1997, the Company’s Board adopted and the stockholders of the Company approved a
non-compensatory employee stock purchase plan entitled the Hypercom Corporation 1997 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (Purchase Plan). The Purchase Plan allows eligible employees of the Company to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock through periodic payroll deductions every three months. At the end of
each offering period, payroll deductions for the offering period are used to purchase shares of common stock
for each participant’s account at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on either
the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is less. Payroll deductions under the Purchase Plan are
limited to 10% of each eligible employee’s earnings during the offering period, and no single participant will be
granted an option to purchase shares with a value in excess of $25,000 for each calendar year. The Board has
reserved 625,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the Purchase Plan, subject to adjustment in the
event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend or similar event. Under the Purchase Plan, for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 the Company sold 49,889, 105,959, and 90,571, shares to
employees at weighted average prices of $4.99, $3.06, and $3.68 per share, respectively.

Preferrved Stock

On September 8, 1997, the Company’s Board amended and restated the Company’s Certificate of
Incorporation to authorize 10,000,000 shares of $0.001 par value preferred stock. As of December 31, 2004
and 2003, there were no Preferred shares outstanding.

Directors’ Stock Plan

On September 8, 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and the stockholders of the Company
approved the Hypercom Corporation Directors’ Stock Plan (Director Plan). The Director Plan is adminis-
tered by a committee appointed by the Board and provides for an initial grant to each Director of an option to
purchase 6,250 shares of Common Stock immediately following the IPO. [n addition, each individual who first
becomes a Director after the date of the initial grant of options will be granted an option to
purchase 6,250 shares of Common Stock, and will receive an annual grant of options to purchase 6,250 shares
of Common Stock. The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Director Plan may not
exceed 175,000, subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend or similar
event. Options granted under the Director Plan are fully vested and become fully exercisable on the first
anniversary of the date of grant and have a term of ten years. The exercise price per share under the Director
Plan is equal to the fair market value of such shares upon the date of grant. In general, options may be
exercised by payment in cash or a cash equivalent, and/or previously acquired shares having a fair market
value at the time of exercise equal to the total option exercise price.

Stock Repurchase

During 2003, the Company purchased 60,000 shares of its common stock for $0.3 million. The
repurchased shares were recorded as treasury stock and result in a reduction to stockholder’s equity. The
timing and amount of any future repurchases will depend on market conditions and corporate considerations.
There were no treasury stock repurchases during 2004.

67




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2004

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

The Company leases office and warehouse space, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable operating
leases. The office space leases provide for annual rent payments plus a share of taxes, insurance and
maintenance on the properties.

Future minimum payments under operating leases are as follows (dollars in thousands):
Years Ending December 31,

20005 $1,980
2000 e e 1,256
2007 e 1,068
2008 e 857
2000 550
Thereafter ..o e 729

56,440

Rental expense from continuing operations amounted to $2.9 million, $3.1 million, and $3.6 million, for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Litigation

In connection with the restatement of the Company’s quarterly results for the first three quarters of 2004
(Notes 2 and 19), the Company, its chief executive officer, and its chief financial officer were named as
defendants in several purported shareholder class action lawsuits alleging that Hypercom and its executive
management engaged in violations of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by issuing false and misleading
statements concerning the Company’s financial results for the first three quarters of 2004. Also in connection
with the restatement, a shareholder’s derivative action was filed against Hypercom, its chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, and its board of directors alleging breach of fiduciary duties. This action is based on the
same facts and circumstances alleged in the shareholder suits discussed above, and alleges that the defendants
participated in issuing misleading and inaccurate statements and failed to implement adequate internal
controls. The Company, its officers, and directors believe they have meritorious defenses and intend to
vigorously defend the suits and any additional suits that may be filed.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of its
business. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters and the
proceedings disclosed above, it is the opinion of the Company’s management, based upon the information
available at this time, that the expected outcome of these matters, individually or in the aggregate, will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

16. Receivables from Stockholders

In fiscal 1997, the Company made a loan to George Wallner, the Company’s former Chief Strategist and
former principal stockholder, in the principal amount of $0.7 million and to Paul Wallner a former principal
stockholder, in the principal amount of $0.7 million. The loans were non-interest bearing and were repaid in
full in March 2004. The outstanding balance on these notes was formerly included as a separate component of
Stockholders’ Equity.
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17. Segment, Geographic, and Customer Information
Segment

As a result of the sale of Golden Eagle Leasing effective October 1, 2003, which comprised the
Company’s entire Direct-Finance Leasing segment, the Company’s continuing operations consist solely of one
segment: Point-of-Sale (POS)/Network Systems. All operating results and cash flows for Golden Eagle
Leasing have been reclassified to discontinued operations for all periods presented (Note 10).

POS Systeims develops, manufactures, markets, and supports products that automate electronic payment
transactions at the point of sale in merchant establishments as well as supporting non-payment applications
and new markets, including government, education and healthcare. Network Systems develops, manufactures,
markets, and supports transaction-networking systems.

Geographic

Net revenues to external customers are based on the location of the customer. Geographic information as
of and for each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 is presented in the table below (dollars
in thousands):

Years Ending December 31, United States Latin America Asia/Pacific Europe Total
2004

Revenues ................... $82,375 $44,033 $43,006 $85,741  $255,155
Long-lived assets. ............ 20,555 7,159 4,260 7,584 39,558
2003

Revenues .. ... R $76,466 $42,897 $40,193 $71,958  $231,514
Long-lived assets............. 21,307 13,624 3,450 2,218 40,599
2002

Revenues ................... $83,038 $65,318 $38,422 $58,187  $244,965
Long-lived assets............. 26,121 15,210 2,334 1,842 45,507

Customer

The Company had one customer that accounted for 10.2% and 12.1% of the Company’s net revenues for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2002, respectively. No other customers accounted for 10% or more of
the Company’s revenues during 2004 and 2002 and no customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s
revenues during 2003.

18. Supplemental Cash Flow Information (in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ... ... ... $ (8,059) $(2,213) $ 7,716
Net investment in sales-type leases ..................... 2,554 (6,446) (4,750)
Inventories .. ... (11,170) 1,243 5,732
Income tax receivable. ........... .. .. ... .. ... ... — 9,118 (9,118)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ................ (866) 910 4,019
Other assets . ... oot e e (1,214) (368) (5,345)
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Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Accounts payable ........ .. . 4,712 1,587 (13,562)
Accrued payroll and related expenses.................... 687 1,265 696
Accrued sales and othertax. ........................... 369 175 2,285
Accrued Habilities .. ... ... . 763 (266) (4,491)
Deferred revenue. ... ... i 1,410 (625) 101
Income taxes payable . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 1,495 (18) 100
Other Nabilities .. ... .. . . .. 420 1,539 637
Net decrease in operating assets and liabilities . ........... $ (8,899) §$ 5901  $(15,980)
Cash paid during the year by continuing operations:
Interest . ..ot U $ (879) $(1,064) §$ (2,956)
INCOME TAXES . .ottt $ (3,659) $(2,275) $ (3,033)

Noncash investing activities:

Changes in accounts payable related to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment. ....... ... ... ... $ - $ — 5 @

Noncash financing activities:
Issuance of common stock warrants at fair value ........ .. $ — 3 -— $ (833
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19. Interim Financial Results (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth certain unaudited consolidated financial information for each of the four
quarters in the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. In management’s opinion, this unaudited quarterly
information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and includes
all necessary adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments that management considers
necessary for a fair presentation of the unaudited quarterly results when read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes. The Company believes that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of
its financial results are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance (dellars in thousands, except per share data).

2004
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter(B) Quarter Quarter Fiscal Year
Net revenue, as reported ............ $50,763  $ 64,691 $63,173  $79,703  $258,330
Restatement(A) ................... (1,121) (1,632) (422) — (3,175)
Net revenue, as restated . ............ $49,642 $ 63,059  $62,751  $79,703  $255,155
Gross profit, as reported ............. $21,246  § 16,643  $24,613  $31,750 $ 94,252
Restatement(A) ................... (748) (1,094) (314) — (2,156)
Gross profit, as restated ............. $20,498 § 15,549  $24,299  $31,750 $ 92,096
Net income (loss) .................. $(2,221) $ (9,436) $ 584 $ 4528 $ (6,545)
Restatement(A) ................... (752)  (1,090) (275) — (2,117)
Net income (loss), as restated. . ... ... $(2,973) $(10,526) $ 309 §$ 4,528 § (8,662)
Basic income (loss) per share, as
reported ... $ (004) $ (018) $ 001 $ 009 $ (0.12)
Restatement(A) ................... (0.02) (0.02) — — (0.05)
Basic income (loss) per share, as
restated ... ... $ (0.06) $§ (0200 § 001 $§ 009 § (0.17)
Diluted income (loss) per share, as
reported . ... ... $ (0.04) $ (018) $ 001 $ 008 $ (0.13)
Restatement(A) ................... » (0.02) (0.02) — — (0.04)
Diluted income (loss) per share, as
restated .. ... $ (0.06) § (0200 $ 001 $ 008 $§ (0.17)
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2003
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter(C) Quarter (C) Quarter(C) Quarter(C) Fiscal Year
Netrevenue .................. $49,796 $58,899 $59,405 $63,414 $231,514
Grossprofit . .................. $19,920 $23,920 $25,304 $26,886 $ 96,030
Income (loss) before discontinued
oOperations .................. $(2.,800) $ 976 $ 3,037 $ 2,752 $ 3,963
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations . ................. 770 (484) 956 5,991 7,233
Net income (loss) ............. $(2,030) § 492 $ 3,993 $ 8,743 $ 11,198
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before
discontinued operations . . ... $ (0.06) $ 0.02 $ 0.06 $ 0.06 $ 0.08
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations ... .. 0.02 {0.01) 0.02 0.12 0.15

Basic income (loss) per share $ (0.04) $ 0.01 $ 0.08 $ 0.18 $ 023

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before

discontinued operations . . ... $ (0.06) $ 002 $ 0.06 $ 0.05 $ 0.08
Income (loss) from

discontinued operations . . . .. 0.02 (0.01) 0.02 0.12 0.14
Diluted income (loss) per share § (0.04) $ 0.0l $ 0.08 $ 017 $ 022

(A) During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company determined that certain leases originated during the first
three quarters of 2004 by the Company were incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than
operating leases. This accounting error, which relates to approximately 3,200 leases, resulted in an
overstatement of net revenue and net operating profit for the first three quarters of 2004. Accordingly, the
first three quarters have been restated to properly account for the leases as operating leases (Note 2).

(B) During the second quarter of 2004, the Company recorded an $12.9 million charge to operations for all
remaining amounts recorded under the contract. The charge consisted of an $11.3 million write-off of
deferred contract costs, which was recorded in cost of revenues and a $1.6 million reserve against
accounts receivable, which was recorded in selling expenses (Note 11).

(C) During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company sold its direct finance lease subsidiary, Golden Eagle
Leasing, and recorded an $7.0 million gain net of severance and other closing costs. As a result of the
disposition, the net operating results of Golden Eagle Leasing have been reported within discontinued
operations for all periods presented (Note 10).
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SCHEDULE 11 YALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Charges to
Costs and
Balance at Expense in Charged Balance at
Beginning Continuing to Other Deductions End of
of Period Operations Accounts (A) Period

(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2002:

Allowance for doubtful accounts............. $3,422 $ 538 $336 $(1,014) $ 3,282
Allowance for credit losses on sales-type leases 607 691 — 120 1,418
Year Ended December 31, 2003:

Allowance for doubtful accounts............. $3,282 $ 1,972 $ — $(4,261) $ 993
Allowance for credit losses on sales-type leases 1,418 705 — (429) 1,694
Year Ended December 31, 2004:

Allowance for doubtful accounts............. $ 993 $ 1,915 $ — $ (518) $ 2,390
Allowance for credit losses on sales-type leases 1,694 203 — (699) 1,198

(A) Write-offs of uncollectible amounts and recoveries of amounts previously written off.
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit and Method of Filing

3.1 — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registra-
tion No. 333-35461))

3.2 — Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2
to Hypercom Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001)

4.1 — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registra-
tion No. 333-35461))

10.1 — Lease, as amended, dated June 14, 1996, by and between Estes-Samuelson Partnership and
Hypercom, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-35461))

10.2 — Hypercom Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-67440))+

10.3 — Amended and Restated Hypercom Corporation 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2004)+

10.4 — Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-97181) )t

10.5 — Hypercom Corporation Nonemployee Directors” Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-97179) )t

"10.6 — Employment Agreement, dated February 4, 2004, between Christopher S. Alexander and
Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

10.7 — Deferred Compensation Agreement, dated June 3, 2002, between Christopher S. Alexander and
Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002)+

10.8 — Amendment to Deferred Compensation Agreement, dated March 16, 2004, between Hypercom
Corporation and Christopher S. Alexander (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom
Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004)}

10.8 — Factory Premises and Quarters Lease Agreement between Hypercom Electronic Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. And Xin He Economic Development Company, Fu Yong Town, Boa An.
District, Shenzhen City, dated September 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2004)

10.8 — Credit Agreement dated January 31, 2005, by and between Hypercom Corporation and Wells Fargo
N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 3, 2005)

21.1 — List of Subsidiaries*
23.1 — Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*
24.1 — Powers of Attorney*

31.1 — Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002*

31.2 — Certification of Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002*
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32.1 — Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.2 — Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002* '

99.1 — Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors*

* Filed herewith.
t Management or compensatory plan or agreement.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher S. Alexander, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or

omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this

annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)) and 13d-15(f) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ C.S. Alexander

Christopher S. Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 21, 2005



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, John W. Smolak, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period cevered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions}:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a |
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ John W. Smolak

John W. Smolak
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 21, 2005 ‘

*




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Hypercom Corporation
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I certify that: (i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of Hypercom
Corporation (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and (it} the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Hypercom Corporation.

By: /s/ C.S. Alexander

Christopher S. Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

March 21, 2005



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Hypercom Corporation
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I certify that: (i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of Hypercom
Corporation (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Hypercom Corporation.

By: /s/ John W. Smolak

John W. Smolak
Chief Financial Officer

March 21, 2005




EXHIBIT 99.1

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
AND RISK FACTORS

In passing the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Reform Act™), Congress encouraged
public companies to make “forward-looking statements” by creating a safe harbor to protect companies from
securities law liability in connection with forward-looking statements. We intend to qualify both our written and
oral forward-looking statements for protection under the Reform Act and any other similar safe harbor provisions.

“Forward-looking statements” are defined by the Reform Act. Generally, forward-looking statements
include expressed expectations of future events and the assumptions on which the expressed expectations are
based. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “forecast,” ‘“‘estimate,” “project,” and similar
expressions identify forward-looking statements. Such statements may include, but are not limited to, the state of
the electronic payments industry and competition within the industry; projections regarding specific demand for
our products and services; the commercial feasibility of new products, services and market development
initiatives; our ability to successfully penetrate the vertical and geographic markets that we have targeted; our
ability to reduce our product costs; our ability to transition to a business model that includes more recurring
revenue streams; our ability to timely remediate the material weaknesses and significant deficiencies identified
through our internal control evaluation; our future financial performance and financial condition; the adequacy of
our current facilities and management systems infrastructure to meet our operational needs; the status of our
relationship with and condition of third parties upon whom we rely in the conduct of our business; the sufficiency
of reserves for assets and obligations exposed to revaluation; our ability to successfully expand our business; our
ability to effectively hedge our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; our ability to sustain our
current income tax structure; the impact of current litigation matters, including the shareholder class actions and
the shareholder derivative action, on our business; our ability to fund our projected liquidity need from cash flow
from operations and our current cash reserves; and future access to capital on terms that are acceptable, as well
as assumptions related to the foregoing. Such forward-looking statements are within the meaning of that term in
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. All forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain as they are based on various
expectations and assumptions concerning future events and they are subject to numerous known and unknown
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual events or result to differ materially from those projected. Due to
those and other uncertainties and risks, you are urged not to place undue reliance on our written or oral forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise this Cautionary Statement Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements to reflect future developments. In addition, we undertake no obligation to update
or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events, or
changes to future operating results over time.

LEINT3 EEIYS EL I

We provide the following risk factor disclosure in connection with our continuing effort to qualify our written
and oral forward-looking statements under the safe harbor protection of the Reform Act and any other similar safe
harbor provisions. Important factors currently known to management that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in forward-looking statements include the disclosures contained in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and also include the following:

RISK FACTORS
Risks Related To Qur Business

We have incurred significant losses in the past and our vesults of operations have and will continue to vary
Jrom quarter to quarter. If our financial performance is not in line with investor expectations, the price of
our common stock will suffer and our access to future capital may be impaired.

We had a net loss of $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Although we had net income of
$11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, we incurred a net loss of $61.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. If the results of our continuing efforts to improve profitability, increase our cash flow and
strengthen our balance sheet do not meet or exceed the expectations of securities analysts or investors, the
price of our common stock will suffer.



Further, given the variability of our revenues, our quarterly financial results have fluctuated significantly
in the past and are likely to do so in the future. Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of
our results of operations may be misleading and not indicative of future performance. If our quarterly financial
results fall below the expectations of securities analysts or investors, the price of our common stock may suffer.

Quarterly revenue and operating results can vary depending on a number of factors, including:

« variations in product mix, timing and size of fulfilled orders as a result of customer deferral of
purchases and/or delays in the delivery of our products and services;

» accomplishment of certain performance parameters embedded in our service level agreements;
« the market’s demand for new product offerings;

+ delays in the delivery of our products and services;

» product returns;

+ incremental costs incurred as a result of product quality and/or performance issues;

« write-off of doubtful accounts receivable;

* inventory obsolescence;

 variations in operating expenses, including research and development, selling, and general and
administrative expenses;

* restructuring activities;
« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;
» availability and cost of financing;
* variations in income tax as a function of income recognition by tax jurisdiction; and
« industry and economic conditions, including competition, industry standards, product certification
requirements, trade restrictions and other regulations.
The loss of one or more of our key customers could significantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe that we may continue to derive, a significant portion of our revenues from a
limited number of large customers. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, our two largest customers
accounted for 17.3% of our revenue, and our five largest customers accounted for 27% of our revenue. Qur
customers may buy less of our products or services depending on their own technological developments, end-
user demand for our products and internal budget cycles. A major customer in one year may not purchase any
of our products or services in another year, which may negatively affect our financial performance.

Our products may contain defects that may be difficult or even impossible to correct. Product defects could
result in lost sales, additional costs and customer erosion.

We offer technically complex products which, when first introduced or released in new versions, may
contain software or hardware defects that are difficult to detect and correct. The existence of defects and
delays in correcting them could result in negative consequences, inciuding the following:

» delays in shipping products;
» cancellation of orders;

» additional warranty expense;

delays in the collection of receivables;

« product returns;




o additional claims against us;
o the loss of market acceptance of our products; and
o diversion of R&D resources from new product development.

Even though we test all of our products, defects may continue to be identified after products are shipped.
In past periods, we have experienced various issues in connection with product launches, including the need to
rework certain products and stabilize product designs. Correcting defects can be a time-consuming and
difficult task. Software errors may take several months to correct, and hardware errors may take even longer.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory that could result in unanticipated price veductions and
write downs and adversely affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for components and finished produets is challenging. In formulating
our product offerings, we have focused our efforts on providing to our customers products with greater
capability and functionality, which requires us to develop and incorporate the most current technologies in our
products. This approach tends to increase the risk of obsolescence for products and components we hold in
inventory and may compound the difficulties posed by other factors that affect our inventory levels, including
the following:

> the need to maintain significant inventory of components that are in limited supply;
o buying components in bulk for the best pricing;

o responding to the unpredictable demand for products;

+ responding to customer requests for short lead-time delivery schedules;

o failure of customers to take delivery of ordered products; and

° product returns.

If we accumulate excess or obsolete inventory, price reductions and inventory write-downs may result,
which could adversely affect our results of operation and financial condition.

If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary technology, our competitors may develop products
substantially similay to our products and use similar technologies, which may result in the loss of
customers.

We rely on patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality, licensing and
other contractual arrangements, to establish and protect the proprietary aspects of our products. Our efforts
may result in only limited protection, and our competitors may develop, market and sell products substantially
equivalent to our products, or utilize technologies similar to those used by us. If we are unable to adequately
protect our proprietary technology, these third parties may be able to compete more effectively against us,
which could result in the loss of customers and adversely affect our business.

Our products and other proprietary rights may infringe on the proprietary rights of thivd parties, which
may expose us to litigation.

Although we believe that our products do not infringe on any third party’s patents, from time to time we
have become involved in claims and litigation involving patents or proprietary rights. Patent and proprietary
rights litigation entails substantial legal and other costs, and divert the attention our management resources.
There can be no assurance that we will have the necessary financial resources to appropriately defend or
prosecute our rights in connection with any such litigation.
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A disruption in the manufacturing capabilities of our third-party manufacturers ov suppliers would
negatively impact our ability to meet customer demands.

We rely on third-party manufacturers to manufacture and assemble our products. We also depend upon
third-party suppliers to deliver components that are free from defects, competitive in functionality and cost,
and in compliance with our specifications and delivery schedules. Since we generally do not maintain large
inventories of our products or components, any termination of, or significant disruption in, our relationship
with our third-party manufacturers or suppliers may prevent us from filling customer orders in a timely
manner.

We have occasionally experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in delivery of products and
delivery of products of inferior quality from third-party manufacturers. Although alternate manufacturers and
suppliers are generally available to produce our products and product components, the number of manufactur-
ers or suppliers of some of our products and components is limited, and qualifying a replacement manufacturer
or supplier could take several months. In addition, our use of third-party manufacturers reduces our direct
control over product quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costs. Disruption of the manufacture or supply
of our products and components, or a third-party manufacturer’s or supplier’s failure to remain competitive in
functionality, quality or price, could delay or interrupt our ability to manufacture or deliver our products to
customers on a timely basis, which would have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
performance.

International operations pose additional challenges and visks that if not properly managed could adversely
affect our financial results.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we derived approximately 68% of our total revenues outside of
the United States, principally in Latin America and Europe. We expect that international sales will continue
to account for a significant percentage of our net income in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, we face
numerous risks associated with conducting international operations, any of which could negatively affect our
results of operations and financial condition. These risks include the following:

 changes in foreign country regulatory requirements;

« various import/export restrictions and the availability of required import/export licenses;
 imposition of foreign tariffs and other trade barriers;

* political and economic instability;

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

+ extended payment terms and the ability to collect accounts receivable;

+ the ability to repatriate funds; and

+ availability of qualified and affordable staff with which to manage our foreign operations.
Additionally, we are subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which may place us at a competitive

disadvantage to foreign companies that are not subject to similar regulations.

We sell our POS products directly to end-user merchants in the United Kingdom under sales-type leases
that are subject to governmental regulation and involve a rvisk of default that, if excessive, could vesult in a
substantial write-off of the value of that lease portfolio and impair our profitability.

Our subsidiary in the United Kingdom (UK) sells POS equipment directly to end-user merchants under
capital lease arrangements intended to be accounted for as sales-type leases. The customer base of this leasing
business is characterized by higher incidences of delinquencies and defaults and is distinctly different from our
predominant customer base of large domestic and international financial institutions, electronic payment
processors, independent sales organizations, distributors and resellers. We maintain an allowance for estimated
uncollectible sales-type lease receivables at an amount that we believe is sufficient to provide adequate
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protection against losses in our sales-type lease portfolio. Qur allowance is determined principally on the basis
of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of the credit quality of the sales-type lease
customer base. The value of this lease portfolio and the profitability of this leasing activity could be
substantially impaired if our existing lease loss reserves prove inadequate or future leases we originate
experience a default rate greater than that for which we established reserves at the time of inception. This
business activity is also subject to governmental regulation. Our failure to comply with such regulation could
adversely affect our ability to enforce the sales-type leases, which could negatively impact our results of
operation and financial condition. Certain of the leases in our UK lease portfolio are accounted for as operating
leases. These leases are subject to different accounting treatment and do not have the same risk because the
lease payments are recognized as earned and not all at the initiation of the lease as is the case with sales-type
leases.

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may adversely affect our financial results.

A substantial part of our business consists of sales made to international customers. A portion of revenues
and expenses related to our international operations are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.
We cannot assure you that adverse currency exchange rate fluctuations will not have a material impact in the
future. In addition, our balance sheet reflects non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities which can be
adversely affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Prior to 2002, we did not hedge our exposure to
these fluctuations. More recently, we have entered into foreign currency forward contracts intended to hedge
our exposure to adverse fluctuations in exchange rates. Nevertheless, these hedging arrangements may not
always be effective, particularly in the event of imprecise forecasts of non-U.S. denominated assets and
liabilities. Accordingly, if there is an adverse movement in exchange rates, we might suffer significant losses.
In the year ended December 31, 2004, we incurred foreign currency expense of $3.2 million net of foreign
currency transaction gains or losses.

Adverse resolution of litigation may adversely affect our business ov financial vesults .

We are party to litigation in the normal course of our business. Litigation can be expensive, lengthy and
disruptive to normal business operations. Morecover, the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to
predict. An unfavorable resolution of a particular lawsuit could have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results, or financial condition. For additional information regarding certain of the lawsuits in which
we are involved, see Ttem 3, “Legal Proceedings,” contained in Part 1 of our most recent Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Litigation Arising Out of the Restatement of Our Consolidated Financial Statements Could Seriously
Harm Our Business.

Beginning in February, 2005, a number of purported shareholder class action complaints were filed in the
United States District Court, District of Arizona, against us and certain of our executive officers, all purporting
to be brought on behalf of a class of purchasers of our common stock in the period from April 30, 2004 to
February 3, 2005. The complaints allege that we, and certain of our executive management, violated the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 based on our February 2005 announcement that certain leases in the United
Kingdom had been incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than operating leases. As a result of
this accounting error, we determined that we would restate our financial statements for the first three quarters
of 2004. In March 2005, a shareholder’s derivative action was filed in the United States District Court, District
of Arizona against us and certain of our executive officers and our board of directors alleging breach of
fiduciary duties. We intend to vigorously defend these actions.

Litigating existing and potential securities class actions and shareholder derivative actions relating to the
restatement of our consolidated financial statements will likely require significant attention and resources of
management and, regardless of the outcome, result in significant legal expenses. In the case of the securities
class actions, if our defenses were ultimately unsuccessful, or if we were unable to achieve a favorable
settlement, we could be liable for large damages awards that could seriously harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition.




We are dependent on current management and key personnel. The loss of certain of these individuals could
cause matervial harm to the operation and future prospects of our business.

Christopher Alexander, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and John W. Smolak, our
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial and Administrative Officer, are instrumental in our continuing
development and operations. The loss of either of these key executives could have a material adverse effect on
the operation and future prospects of our business. We also believe our future success will depend largely upon
our ability to attract and retain highly-skilled hardware and software engineers, managerial, and sales and
marketing personnel. We compete against numerous companies, including larger, more established compa-
nies, for our personnel. We do not know if we will be successful in attracting or retaining skilled personnel.
Further, the loss of certain key employees or our inability to attract and retain other qualified employees could
negatively affect our financial performance.

We have in the past and may in the future make acquisitions and strategic investments, which will involve
numerous visks. We may not be able to address these risks without substantial expense, delay or other
opevational or financial problems.

We may acquire or make substantial investments in related businesses, technologies, products or services
in the future. These acquisitions or investments involve various risks, such as:

« the inability to assimilate the technologies, operations and personnel of the acquired business;

« the potential disruption of our existing business, including the diversion of management attention and
the redeployment of additional resources;

+ the loss of key employees of an acquired business; and
» the inability to obtain the desired strategic and financial benefits from the acquisition or investment.

Future acquisitions and investments could also result in substantial cash expenditures, potentially dilutive
issuance of our equity securities, our incurring of additional debt and contingent liabilities, and amortization
expenses related to other intangible assets that could adversely affect our business, operating results and
financial condition.

Force Majeure events, such as terrovist attacks, other acts of violence or war, and health epidemics may
affect the markets in which our common stock trades, our ability to operate and our financial results.

Domestic and international terrorist attacks, wars and regional conflicts may cause instability in the
global financial markets, and contribute to downward pressure on securities prices of United States publicly
traded companies, such as us. Future terrorist attacks or armed conflicts, and epidemics, such as SARS, could
result in economic, political and other uncertainties that could adversely affect our revenues and operating
results, and further depress securities prices, including the price of our common stock. Such events may
disrupt the global insurance and reinsurance industries, and adversely affect our ability to obtain or renew
certain insurance policies, and may result in significantly increased costs of maintaining insurance coverage.
Further, we may not be able to obtain insurance coverage at historical or acceptable levels for all of our
facilities. Future terrorist attacks, armed conflicts and epidemics could affect our domestic and international
sales, disrupt our supply chain and impair our ability to produce and deliver our products. Such events could
directly impact our physical facilities or those of our suppliers or customers in the United States and
elsewhere. Our primary facilities include administrative, sales and R&D facilities in the United States, and
manufacturing facilities in China. Acts of terrorism, wars and epidemics may make transportation of our
supplies and products more difficult or cost prohibitive.

Risks Related To The Industry
The markets in which we compete are highly competitive, maturing, and subject to price erosion.

The markets in which we operate are maturing and highly competitive. Increased competition from
manufacturers or distributors of products similar to or competitive with ours, or from service providers that
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provide services similar to our services, could result in price reductions, extended terms, free services, lower
margins and loss of market share.

We expect to continue to experience significant and increasing levels of competition in the future. With
respect to our POS payment system products, we compete primarily on the basis of ease-of-use, product
performance, price, features, quality, the availability of application software programs, the number of third-
party network host and telecommunication system certifications we have obtained for our products and
application programs, rapid development, release and delivery of software products and customer support and
responsiveness. Software products compete on the basis of functionality, scalability, quality and support.

« In the POS terminal market, our global competitors are Ingenico, a publicly-held, French company,
VeriFone, Inc., a privately-held U.S. company, and Lipman, a publicly-held Israeli company.
According to Frost & Sullivan, the top four manufacturers (Hypercom, VeriFone, Ingenico and
Lipman) accounted for approximately 70% of POS terminals shipped in 2003, while 40 other
manufacturers accounted for the remaining 30%. In any particular market, we may also find ourselves
in competition with participants that compete on either a regional or local country basis, within certain
market segments or with a limited range of products and services.

o In the multi-lane POS market, we offer terminals designed specifically for the multi-lane retailer
environment. QOur multi-lane terminals compete with integrated electronic cash register/POS terminal
products from companies such as Symbol and HHP.

We often face additional competitive factors in foreign countries, including but not limited to preferences
for national vendors, difficulties in obtaining required certifications, conformity with local government policies
and trade practices, and compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Some of our competitors and
potential competitors are more established, benefit from greater name recognition and have significantly
greater resources than we do. Moreover, there are limited barriers to entry that could keep our competitors
from developing products or services and technology similar to ours, or from selling competing products or
services in our markets. Further, there can be no assurance that we will be able to lower our product costs to
effectively compete in these markets.

We are subject to industry and technology changes and are dependent on development and market
acceptance of new products. If we are unable to adequately respond to these changes and to market
demands in a timely manner, our business will not be successful.

The industry in which we operate is characterized by rapid changes in technology and numerous new
product introductions. Our success depends to a large degree upon our continued ability to offer new products
and enhancements to our existing products to meet changing market requirements, including conformity with
imposed standards. The introduction of new products and technologies by third parties could have an adverse
effect on the sales of our existing products and technologies. We cannot be certain of our ability to
successfully:

o identify, develop, or manufacture new products and technologies in a cost effective manner;
¢ market or support these new products and technologies on a timely basis;

o eliminate defects in new products;

o gain market acceptance for the new products and technologies; or

o respond to technological changes, new industry standards, and announcements of new products by
competitors.

Developing new products and technologies is a complex, uncertain process requiring innovation and
accurate anticipation of technological and market trends. When changes to the product line are announced, we
will be challenged to manage possible shortened life cycles for existing products, continue to sell existing
products and prevent customers from returning existing products. Our inability to respond effectively to any of
these challenges may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial success.
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We are subject to extensive industry standards and government regulations. Our failure to properly comply
with these standards and regulations could adversely affect our production and sales.

Our product sales are subject to a substantial and complex array of industry driven standards and
governmental regulation, both domestic and foreign, including:

« industry standards imposed by EuroPay International, Mastercard International, VISA International,
and others;

« certification standards required for connection to some public telecommunications networks;
+ Federal Communications Commission regulations;

« Underwriters Laboratories’ regulations; and

« certification standards set by domestic processors.

Our failure to properly comply with these standards and regulations could result in lost product sales,
significant costs associated with required remedial measures or production stoppages, any of which could have
a material adverse effect on our business and financial performance.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, volatile. When we or our
competitors announce new products, services, or customer orders, change pricing policies, experience quarterly
fluctuations in operating results, announce strategic relationships, acquisitions or dispositions, change earnings
estimates, fail to maintain effective internal controls, restate financial results, incur litigation, experience
government regulatory actions or suffer from generally adverse economic conditions, our stock price is often
affected. Recently, companies similar to ours have experienced extreme price fluctuations, often for reasons
unrelated to their performance. The volatility of our stock price may be accentuated during periods of low
volume trading of our stock.

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal controls over financial repovting which will take
time to remediate.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004. Based on this evaluation and the material weaknesses described below, our management
concluded that as of December 31, 2004, our internal control over financial reporting is not effective. The first
material weakness was identified as a result of insufficient controls over the contract administration and
accounting for certain leases that were incorrectly accounted for as sales-type leases, rather than operating
leases. As a result of this material weakness in internal control, management concluded that our previously
reported quarterly revenues and operating profits had been overstated and that previously issued financial
statements for each of the first three quarters of 2004 should be restated. The second material weakness was
identified as a result of the year-end financial statement close procedures whereby we and our independent
registered public accounting firm identified a number of adjustments. We have concluded that controls related
to our analysis, evaluation, and review of our 2004 financial information gave rise to these adjustments and
resulted in a material weakness. These specific deficiencies consisted of:

 an inappropriate level of review of certain significant financial statement accounts requiring a higher
degree of judgment and estimates;

» insufficient analysis, documentation, review, and oversight of the financial statements of certain foreign
subsidiaries during consolidation; and

+ insufficient staffing of the accounting and financial reporting function.

In aggregate, these control deficiencies result in a more than remote likelihood that a material
misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated financial statements could occur and not be prevented or
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detected in a timely manner. We are implementing remedial measures in response to the material weakness
and significant deficiencies identified through our internal controls evaluation. These remedial measures
include additional personnel, organizational changes to improve supervision, and increased training for finance
and accounting persennel. We are in the process of determining when we will be able to fully remediate and
presently anticipate that we will report in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of 2005 that a
material weakness in internal control over financial reporting continues to exist.

We are subject to anti-takeover effects of certain charter and bylaw provisions and Delaware law.

We have provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws which:

¢ make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, and discourage a third party from
attempting to acquire control of us;

» may limit the price some investors are willing to pay for our common stock;

» enable us to issue preferred stock without a vote of our stockholders or other stockholder action;
» provide for a classified Board of Directors and regulate nominations for the Board of Directors;
» make it more difficult for stockholders to take certain corporate actions; and

» may delay or prevent a change of control.

These and other provisions of our charter documents, as well as certain provisions of Delaware law, could
delay or make more difficult certain types of transactions involving a change of control of Hypercom or our
management. As a result, the price of our common stock may be adversely affected.

Our stock price could be affected because a substantial number of shares of our common stock will be
available for sale in the future.

As of March 4, 2005, we had 52,461,177 shares of our common stock outstanding, all of which have been
listed for trading according to the rules of the New York Stock Exchange. We also had outstanding, as of
March 4, 2005, options and warrants to acquire an additional 7,483,129 shares of our common stock. All of the
shares underlying the outstanding options and warrants have been registered for resale. Future public sales of
our common stock, or the availability of such shares for sale, including the shares subject to outstanding
options and warrants, could adversely affect the prevailing market price of our common stock and impair our
ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities.

We do not plan to pay any dividends on our common stock.

We do not anticipate paying any dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future.

Risks Related To Our Indebtedness

Although our curvent indebtedness is limited, we may be required to incur additional debt to meet the
Sfuture capital requivements of our business. Should we be required to incur additional debt, the restrictions
imposed by the terms of our debt could adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to respond
to changes in our business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subject to the following risks:
+ our vulnerability to adverse economic conditions and competitive pressures may be heightened,;
- our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry may be limited;

e we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates if any of our debt obligations are subject to variable
interest rates; and

» our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, general corporate purposes or other purposes may be impaired.
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We cannot assure you that our leverage and such restrictions will not materially and adversely affect our
ability to finance our future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities. In addition, we
cannot assure you that additional financing will be available when required or, if available, will be on terms
satisfactory to us.
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Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on June 1, 2005 beginning 9:00 am,
Phoenix time, at: Hypercom Corporation Headquarters:

2851 W. Kathleen Road, Phoenix, AZ 85053, Tel: 602-504-5000

Stockholder Information

For additional investor information, please direct your request to:

Scott Tsujita, Senior VP - Finance, Treasury & Investor Relations,
2851 W. Kathleen Road, Phoenix , AZ 85053,

Email: stsujita@hypercom.com, Tel: 602-504-5000, Fax: 602.504.4644

Transfer Agent and Registrar
( omputershare Investor Services LLC
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